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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF INVEST BANK

Report on the Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of Invest Bank (publicly listed Company) as at 31 December 2017, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Group's consalidated financial statements comprise:

the consclidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017,

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consclidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statemant of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financlal statemants, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is suffictent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our apinion.

Independenca
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for

Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

1
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Our audit approach

Qverview

Key Audit Matters ' - Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities
- Acquisition of a subsidiary

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered whera the
directors made subjective judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates
that involved making assumptions and considering fulure events that are inherently uncertain.
As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management overide of internal controls,
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking Into account the structure of
the Bank, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Bank operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidaled financial statements of the current period. These matlers were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Provision for impairment in direct credit We have performed the following procedures to assess
the reasonableness of the Provision for impaimment in

facilities
direct credit facilities.

As described in the accounting policies

(2.6}, {2.10} and note number (3) Critical - Understood the nature of credit facilities.

Accounting Estimates And Judgmgr]ts. the Assessed managements methadelogy

management calculates the provision for classifying loans and the method used

impairment in direct credit facilities
according to the accounting policies
described in note (2.6) (2.10) and in
accordance with Central Bank of Jordan
related instructions. The Management
reviews the contracts individually or in
group to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment such as default in
payments of customers.

determining the recoverable amount from the
mortgaged assels when sold and expected cash
flow,

Tested sample of customers classified as non-
performing customers to check the
reasonableness of their classification

Tested the information systems of the bank and
the automatic classification of {he non-performing
loans.

2
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In case evidence exist the management
assess the impairment value based on the
recoverable amount from the assets
morgaded to the Bank and in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting
Slandards and Central Bank of Jordan
Instructions.

Due to the importance of these estimates
and judgments, It is considered as
significant risk, which might lead to
material misstaiement in the consoclidated
financial statements when available
information and estimates are misused to
determine the provision value,

As disclosed in Note (10) to the
consolidated financial statements,
managemant had recognised a provision
for impairment in direct credit facilities with
an amount of JD 30,471,752, while net
direct credit facilities amounted to JD
546,039,894 which represents 60% of the
group total assets as at 31 December
2017,

Assessed management's methodology in
assessing the required provision as at 31
December 2017.

Assessed the key assumplions used, based on our
understanding of the group and the nature of the
business.

Tested sample of management estimales of the
racoverable amounts from the sale of mortgaged
assets.

Tested selact of relevant procedures and internal
cantrols applied by the management.

Re-calculated the provision for impairment in direct
credit facilities for a sample of customers in
accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and Central Bank of Jordan
Instructions.

Assess the adequacy of disclosures over the
provision for impairment in direct credit facilities.

q/;quisita; of ;M;L—lbsit-:l_i;r—y

The bank acquired 81,8% of Bindar Trade
and Investment Company - Limited public
shareholding Company - during the year
2017, through its subsidiary (Tamkeen
Leasing Company), through a purchase of
18,369,851 shares with 1 JD par value.
The acquisition cost was JD 16,532,866
which resulted in income amounted to JD
5,598,376. The acquisition process
requires the management to use iis
professional judgement in determining the
fair value of the net assets at the date of
acquisition and determine the goodwill or
income from the acquisitions transaction
value in accordance with Intemational
financial Reporting standards.

Due to the importance of these estimates
it is considered a key audit matter,

We have performed the following procedures regarding
the acquisition process of Jordan trade facilities
company:

Assessed thae Bank ability to control the relevant
financial and operating policies of Jordan Trade
Facilities Company.

Assessed the computation of fair value of the net
assels at the date of acquisition, and reviewing the
income amount generated in accordance with
International Financzial Reporting Standards. [n
addition to reviewing the specialist repors
assigned by the bank for the acquisition process.

Assessed the assumptions used in determining the
value fair value.

Assessed the calculation of non-cantrolling interest
in net income and net assets of Bindar for Trade
and Investment Company.

3
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As disclosed in Note (33) (Income - Assess the adequacy of disclosures over

generated from acquisition of a acquisition of a subsidiary.
subsidiary) The Company assessed the
company’s net asset fair value at the date
of acquisiton for the amount of
JO 22,131,242, Resulting in income
recorded at the income statement

amounting JD 5,598,378,

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
other information included in the Bank's annual report for the year 2017 but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otharwise appears to be materially misstated.

We read the other informatien, and there is no material misstatement therein, to communicate to
thase charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranca is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuling from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresantations, or the override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
&n opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relaled to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence aobtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Bank maintains proper accounting records and the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are in agreement therewith the financial date presented in the Board of Directors'
raport. We recommended that the General assembly of Shareholders approve these financial
slatements.

8 April 2018
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INVEST BANK

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As OF 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Assets

Cash and balances at the Cenlral Bank of Jordan

Balances at banks and financial institutions

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

Financial assels at fair value through statement of
incame

Direct credit facilities - net

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprahensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Property and equipment-net

Intangible assels

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities And Equity
Liabilities

Banks and financial institutions deposits
Customers deposits
Cash margins
Borrowed funds

Bonds

Sundry provisions
Income tax pravision
Deferred {ax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
Authorized capital

Subscribed and paid-in capital

Statutory reserve

General banking risks reserve

Financial assets revaluation reserve

Retained eamings

Total equity attributable to the shareholders
of the bank

Non-controlling interest

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The attached notes from 1 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Note 2017 2016
JD JD

4 108,370,113 91,250,017
-] 71,613,034 73,802,498
6 11,013,457 5,500,000
7 1,853,987 2,128,116
10 646,039,804 538,630,285
8 37,638,042 24,437,914
9 105,548,083 120,143,870
11 29,663,865 28,573,609
12 2,633,887 3,003,463
20 7,576,553 6,883,615
13 51,295,118 55,123,285
1,073,246,133 949,576,672

14 10,232,834 2,432,998
15 676,100,082 622,816,743
16 41,458,158 38,094,827
17 139,982,421 90,789,624
18 3,000,000 -
19 703,454 710,086
20 3,884,780 6,501,454
20 6,103,221 2,812,850
21 12,884,199 12,074,876
894,449,149 785,233,458

22 100,000,000 100,000,000
22 100,000,000 100,000,000
23 25,004,513 23,570,771
23 6,365,000 5,311,284
24 12,477,651 5,491,519
25 30,033,210 27,663,922
173,880,374 162,037,496

27 4,916,610 2,305,718
178,796,984 164,343,214
1,073,246,133 849,576,672




INVEST BANK

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Note 2017 2016
JD JD
Interast income 28 56,577,826 52,218,799
Interest expense 29 (25,226,339) {17,644,158)
Net Interest Income 31,351,487 34,574,641
Net commissions income 30 8,674,034 6,470,124
Net Interest and Commissions Income 40,025,521 41,044,765
Gain from forelgn currency exchange 31 991,941 633,866
Gain from financlal assets at amortized cost 9 116,368 -
Gain from financial assels at fair value through statement
of income 3z 145,485 228,282
Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income 8 2,112,075 1,654,592
Gain from acquisition of a subsidiary 33 5,598,376 -
Other income 34 4,439,858 3,638,023
Gross income 52,429,624 47,089,528
Employees’ expenses 35 (15,026,270) (13,507 421)
Depreciation and amortization 11,12 {2,714,893) (2,852,149)
Other expenses 36 {9,417,868) (8,668,253)
Provision for impairments on seized assets and
provisions for assels seized as per CB.J regulations 13 {755,995) (1.009,763)
Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities 10 (4,750,013) B94,045
(Sundry provisions) Recoverles [rom sundry provisions 19 (26,241) 423,239
Total expenses {32,691,278) {24,721,302)
Net income for the year bafore income tax 19,738,346 22,378,226
Income tax expense 20 (3,963,271) {6,770.967)
Net income for the year 15,775.075 15,607,259
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the bank 15,073,707 15,297,799
Non-controlling inlerest 27 701,368 309,460
15,775,075 15,607,259
Basic and diluted earnings per share from net income
for the year attributable to shareholders of the banks 37 0.151 0.153

The attached notes from 1 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
B
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INVEST BANK

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIBATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income items:
Net change in financial assels revalualion reserve -Net of tax
Loss on sale of financial assets through
other comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive incame for the year
Total comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income attributable to ;
Shareholders of the bank
Non-controlling interest

2017 2016
JD Jo
15,775,075 15,607,259
6,863,818 1,026,194
(94,647) (45,922)
6.769,171 980,272
22,544,546 16,587,531
21,842,878 16,278,071
701,368 309,460
22,544,246 16,587,531

The attached notes from 1 to 49 are an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements

9



0l
uswiajes [Blousul) pejepylosuoa asaty) jo ped jesBaju) ue ale oG 0} | WoJy S8joU paYdENE BY)

"UBQIOP J0 HUBY 1BALSD Wy jeavidde Joud sennbes pur pajopise s 1aU-AI858) UDJIENBAB] SI85SE [BIOUBU)Y JO BSh ayy -

“Uepinf 0 jueg [RNuag el way jeacidde sopd saiinbas pus paysinsal s) aaasa sysp Gupjueq [eseueh 1o osn eyy -

"(E€0°92E'61 Or (9102 Jaqwsasg LE PuR) £10Z 18qWIBIB( LE JO SE pLO'GBE'SL O O) SIUNOLUER SIBPIOYAIBYS O] UORNGHISIP 0] SiqejRAR SBuRES pausiey -
. (N 19102 tequieoe(] LE)

SS9°E gr O panoie /|02 Jequieds Lg jo se sBulwee psuma) syl ul uawsels ewodu) ybnosyy enjea mey e siesse jeiouswy o gousIByp uoHENteABl Byl -
“UOISERULIOY SB|IUND9S uepior Aq palorulsul S ejes jemoe ybnowy) pasyeas ssejun RaZ||Iin eq jouued pUB pPajaulsal S| JUnowke Yang (6} sy (o uopdope Apre

34} o 1958 ey sjuesaida) LM ‘910 18qWedaq LE Jo se p£0'S1y Or Isujebe £10g 18qwadaq LE 10 SE 2L8'8LY QF jO Unowe pajousas @ sBujwee peujelal ey u) papnpu| -
"SUG{IoBSURY) JuBinpned) jo eauejeq Guuewer ey 1o) jsenbal

UBpIOF jo ueg fanued uo peseq (00Z'6E0'L QF ‘6102 JoguBdeg LE PUB) L102 J8qWEseQ LE 0 SB 002'6E0'L QI JO NOWE Pajose) & sBujtike pauEia) ey) uf pepaju| -
"8102 Jaquaseq) |t Jo se G19'E88'9 Ar

1suebe siesse xe) pausjep Joj USRIOM 10 HURE [RIUBD JO SUOHDNIISY) BY] AQ PeloNISal ¢£10Z JaWweaq LE jO S £SE'9L5' OF JO UNoWE UR SBURLES PaURIR) U pepnpy| -

2" eyl Bl2'508'2 96'260'294 ZZ6'E99'L2 6L5'L6P'S Fe2'LIE'S LLL'ois'eE 000°'000°00L 9102 squiasaq LE JO BY
9.C'801"1 G.E'60L°L - - - 5 B CrCE Amipisgns u] luPWSaAU]
(000'00G'8) . {000°000'R) {o00'Do0'R) - - - . {52 81oN) Spuoping
- - 5 (B50'0¥6'2) g SE2'BOL £28'IE2'2 - SeAleto) o] pauajsuel)
LES'ZB85'01 09F'60E LID'BLE'DL 82L'529'v1 EFE'258'L - . - QW02 3AIBUHIIWES JIo |Bj0L

{Zes'sy) S {zze'sk) (120229} 8k1'929 - - - BL0NN aysusyaIdn sayio yBnaiy
anjea Je) |2 5|9SSE [POURL)) JO BB We) 5807

¥BL'O20) - ¥61'920'1 . v51'920'1 - - - X8l 0 jpu-aniacal
uoyenieAs) siesse ouey u) afusyo BN
652'208'GL 091’608 66L'4628'S51 662'LB2'51 - . - - Juoh By 29 BLIOU) BN
L208°9¥9'¥51 269’068 G2H'65L'E51 Z52'v86'cE 9L1'6E0'C 6FO'E09'Y BFE'ZEE"12 000'000'00L Arenuer 1 jo sy
a0z
YR6'S6L'0L1 019'9LE'Y pIC'0BE'ELL 012'CE0'08 15022 0'21 000'588'D £18'FD0'5Z 000° 000001 L10Z Joquisasg |g jo vy
¥E5'G06'L #25'606'L - - - - - Aleipistns u| waunsaw)
(o00'000"01) = (000'000'01) {000'000'01) - - - - {82 atoN) spuepg
- : - _(ssy'zav'z) 3 91L'E50'1 ZFL'EER'L & SeAlnte) o) pavgjsuRl),
obZ'Prs e BOE'LOZ gi8'gra' 12 TR ZEL'RO6'D - - - SWO SABUIYEIIWES JHAD Kot

(2£+0°v5) E (2¥9'v6) (108’912} vIE'Z2L - - - BLUIODU) BAISUBLAIILICD Joio yinauy,
BIHEA Ji2) | SIBSER |B(JUBUY JO B{ES WO 5507

gig'cen's - 818°E08'9 - a19'c98's - - - e} j0 jau-anesal
uofjenjeaa) swsse |eraueuy up ebueyd 18N
SL0'SLL'SL 89E'L0L 204'EL0'SL 20L'EL0'SL - - - 1204 8y} 10) GO 181
FIT'EVE'tOL BYL'S0E'2 96t LE0'291 ZE6'E99°22 615'16¢'S ¥BZ'LIE'S LLL'0L5'ee 000°000'00L Aenuap | jo ey
0%

ar ar ar ar aPr aor ar ar
EloL JETEAT JepoyaIRYs shulue ou-aarasa) [TE] AOpHEIS [BRdED 1) pjed
Guouues-voy 5,preq ayj o} paumey usiEnEAR) Buyweq (eieuag
siqeinguie Anba S19SSE [@)ouBy|)
[Siepjoyaleys
oL
soAESEY

2102 ¥38W3230 LE G3GN3J HV3A 3HL 4O

ALIND3T S, H3NMO N} SIONVHD 30 INIWILYLS Q3LVAITOSNOD
{ANVdINOD ONHITOHIBYHS 2I'Hand)

NNVE 1SIAN|

I BN EEESCENESIENENEESEEEEENEEEEEDEEES




DD EEDE R E

H e

™
==

B T EEEEEES EEEEEE®

INVEST BANK

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Operating activities

Income for tha year belore income tax

Adjustments:

Depraciation and amostisation

Provision for (recovered from) impalment In direct credit faciities

Provision for employees and-ol-service

Provision for lawsuils held agains! the bank

Provision for impalment In seized assels as per CBJ regulations

Racoverad from sundry provision

Recovered from provision of impakkmants in salzed assets by the bank

Gain on sale of assats sized by tha bank

Galn from sale of property and equipment

Unrealized loss from financial assets at falr value through statement
of income

Dividents recelved from financial assets ai lair value through other
comprahensive income

Net inlarasl axpenses

Galn from acquisition of a subsidiary

Efect of axchange rala fluctuations on cash and cash squivalents

Changa [n sasets and llabilities

Daposits at banks and financial institutions
{Maluring atier more than 3 months)

Deposits at banks and linancial Institutlons (Restricted Balances)

Financlal assets al fair value ihrough statement of income

Diract crodit faclities

Cther assats

Cusiomers’ deposils

Cash marging

Other liabilitias

Net cash flows (used in} fram opamating activities
befors Income tax paid and paid provisions

Incomse tax and sundry provisions pald

Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of Financlal assels at fair value through other comprehensive
Incoma

Sefiing of Financial assets at falr valua through othar comprehensiva
Incoma

Dividends raceived from financial assats at fair value ihrough statement
of Incoma

Sals of financial assets at amonized cost

Purchase ol Financial assets at amortized cost

Maturity of financial assets at amortizad cosl

Purchase of property and equipment and project under progress

Proceeds from sale of property and equipmant

Purchase of intangible asseis

Disposal of intangible assets

Net cash used in invesiment in subsidiarias

Net cash Now used in purchase of addiional sharas in a subsidiary

Nel cash gensrated from investment in subsidiaries

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect ol exchanga rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and czsh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalants at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The attached notes from 1 to 50 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Nota 2017 2016
Jo Jo
19,738,346 22,378,225
1,12 2,714,893 2,852,149
10 4,750,013 (894,045)
19 13,600 13,4566
19 35,492 163,295
13 755,995 1,081,426
19 {22.851) (600,000
13 - (71,663)
{116,415} {12,111}
34 {90,788) {283,784)
= 106,736 40,118
B {2.112,075) {1,554,592)
2,022,768 656,452
k<! (5,598,376) -
k)| (48,381) {37.260)
22,148,947 23,731,678
6 (3.512,143) {500,000)
6 (2,001,314) 2,383,288
7 299,957 517,525
10 {80,523,160) {48,385,195)
13 5,623,213 5,068,107
15 53,283,239 38,740,388
16 3,383,331 5,937,420
20 {1,118,263) {3,296,083)
(2,836,123} 24,197,108
20 (7.024,255) {7.725,703)
(9.860,379) 16,471,405
{3,816,009) (2,846,389)
873,567
534,487
2,112,075 1,554,592
8 12,491,789 -
(55,101,651} {72,698,279)
55,205,649 71,834,383
11 (2,530,208) (1,808,33%)
$8,986 19,000
12 (186,547) {262,306)
12 5,621 -
(16,532,866) (20,774,618)
(54.@, i
3,618,533 375,979
{4.025.151) {24.271.510)
% {10,000,000) (8,000,000}
17 30,867,335 41,501,822
20,867,935 33,501,822
k)| 48,39 37,260
7,030,796 25,730,977
162,719,517 136,980,540
k| 169,750,313 162,719,517



INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

(1) GENERAL INFORMATION

Invest Bank (the “Bank™) was eslablished as a Jordanian public shareholding company under
registration No. (173) dated 12 August 1982 in accordance with the Companies Law No. {12) for the
year 1964 with a paid in capital of JD 6 million distributed over 6 million shares with a par value of
JD 1 per share. The Bank's capital was increased several times to become JD 77,500,000 / JD 1
per share as of 31 December 2010. Furthermore, during 2011, the Bank's capital was increased to
JD 85,250,000 / JO 1 per share. Finally, the Bank's capital was increased by JD 14,750,000 on 10
April 2012. Accordingly, the Bank's authorized and paid in capital became JD 100 Millions / JD 1 per
share.

The Bank's Head Office is located In Amman, Abd Alhameed Sharaf Street, Shmesani,
Tel: 5001500, P.O Box 950601, Amman — 11195 Jordan.

The Bank provides banking and related financial through services through its Head Office and
Twelve branches in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, and through its subsidiaries.

Invest Bank Is a public shareholding company listed in Amman Stock Exchange.

These consolidaled financial slatements have been approved by Board of directors meeling held on
14 February 2018, and are subject to the General assembly of Shareholdsrs approval.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Following are the significant accounting policies used by the Bank in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The accompanying consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
of the Bank and its subsidiarles are prepared in accordance with the standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {IASB), interpratations issued by the Committee of
the |ASB, prevailing local laws and regulations of the Gentral Bank of Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income that have been measured at fair value at the date of
these consolidated financial statements. Hedged assets and liabilities are also stated at fair
value.

The raporling currency of these consolidated financial statements is the Jordanian Dinar
which Is the functional currency of the Bank.

The accounting policies applied in preparing the financial statement for the year ended

31 December 2017 are consistent with those used in the year ended 31 December 2016
except for the Information presented in note (2-2).

12



INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

22

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consclidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 except for the implementations of new
slandards and amendments on existing standards as mentioned below:

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Bank

The Bank has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2017:

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses — Amendments to 1AS 12.
Disclosure initlative — amendments to IAS 7.
Transfers of Investment Praperty — Amendments o IAS 40.

Annual Improvements to IFRASs — 2012-2014 Cycle.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatary for 31 December 2017 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Bank:

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Nature of change: The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue.
This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracls for goods and services and IAS 11 which
covers construction contracts.

The new standard s based on the principle thal revenue is recognized whan control of a
good or service transfers to a customer.
The standard permils a modified retrospective approach for the adoption

impact: The management is not expecting any impact of adoption this standard over the
Bank's financial statements, as most of the Bank's income is generated through sources
not subject to this standard.

Mandatory application date: (s mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change: IFRS 16 was issued In January 2018. It will result in almost all leases
being recognized on the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset {the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value laases. The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact: The Standard will primarily affect the accounting of the Bank's operating leases.
As at the reporling date, most of the Bank's operating leases are shori-term and low-
value leases. Therefore, the standard is not expected to have any financial impact on the
Bank.

13
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

Mandatory application date: Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the Company does not intend to adopt the standard bafore
its effective dale. The company intends o apply the simplified transition approach and
will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

- IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments™:

Nature of change: IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assats and financial liabilities and introduces new rules for hedge accounting and
introduced a new impairmant model.

impact of adopting IFRS 9:

The Bank is required to adopt IFRS 9 starling 1 January 2018, for hat, the Bank has
prepared an initial assessment over the impact of the adoption as the transition
operations have not been completed, and impact upon the actual adoption of the
standard as at 1 January 2018 will differ due to the below reasons:

- The Bank will reflect the impact of the estimates and required assessments In
compliance with the standard upon issuing the first interim condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Bank for the period ending 31 March 2018.

- Currently Expected Credit Losses and related assessments are being finalized,
were the Bank is at the final stages of reviewing the related applications.

- The new accounling standards and interpretations, estimates and assumnption used
are subject to changes until the Bank issues the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements as at 31 March 2018.

- Any matters that many require amendment when issuing the instructions of the
Ceniral Bank Jordan regarding the application of IFRS (9) finally.

The following are the most important aspects of application:

A~

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Bank's management does not expect any material impact from applying this standard;
the Bank has early adopled the first phase of IFRS (9) from January 1st, 2011 based on the
raquest Central Bank of Jordan and Jordan Securities Commission,

The Bank did not yet decide about reclassification between the categories of the financial
Instruments of this standard, which is allowed for one time starting 1 January 2018 to
achieve the requirements of the standard. Such decision will be made during the first quarter.

Classification and measurement of financlal liabilities:

IFRS (9) has retained the requirements of IAS (39) regarding the classification of financial
liabilities. |AS 39 (revised) requires recognition of the differences in the assessment of
financial iiabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas IFRS (9} requires:

- Recognition of differences in the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss as a resuit of changes in credit
risk in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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- The remaining amount of falr value valuation differences is recognized in the
consoclidated slalement of profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

When inltially applying IFRS (8), the Bank has the choice to continus applying the hedge
accounting requirements of IAS (39) instead of the requirements IFRS {9).

Impairment of financial assats

IFRS (9) replaces the ‘incurred loss' model in 1AS (38) with a forward-locking ‘expected credit
loss’ model. Which requires the use of estimates and judgements to estimate economic
factors. The mode! will be applied to all financial assels — debt instruments which classified
as amortized cost or af fair value through statement of comprehensive Income or at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment losses will be calculated in accordance with the requirements of IFRS (9) in
accordance with the following rules:

- 12 month impairment loss: the expected Impairment will be calculated for the next 12
months from the date of the consolidated financia! statements.

- Impainment losses for the lifetime of the instrument: the expected impairment of 1he iife
of the financial statement will be calculated until the malurity date from the date of the
consolidated financial statements,

The expected credit loss mechanism depends on the probability of default (PD}. Which
is calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, the loss in default
(LGD), which depends on the value of the exisling collateral, the expaosure at default
(EAD).

The preliminary estimate for the credit losses will increase the provision for impairment
toss by JD 10 million, which will lead to decrease in equity with the same amount after
taking into account the deferred that assets.

Disclosures

IFRS (9) requires delailed disclosures, particularly with regard to hedge accounting, credit
risk, and expecled credit losses. The Bank Is working to provide all the necessary details for
these disciosures to be presented in the subsequent consolidated financial statements after
application.

implementation

The Bank will lake advantage of the exception provided by the slandard at the
implementation on January 1, 2018 by recording potential effects (if any) on the opening
balances of retained eamings, provisions and non-controlling interesis rather than restating
the figures of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017
and earlier.
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and the
wholly owned subsidiary companies controlled by it. Conlrol exists when the Bank has the
ability to control the financia! and operating policies of the subsidiary companies in order to
achieve financial benefits out of their operations. All inter-company transactions, balances,
ravenues and expenses between the Bank and ils subsidiaries are eliminated, as well as
between the subsidiaries themselvas.
The consolidated financial stalemenls contains the banks financial statement and its
following subsidiaries as of 31 December 2017:
Pald-in Bank's Nature of Date of
Company's Name capital ownership oparations Location Beguisition
JD
Financial
Al- Mawared for Financial sacurities
Brokerage Company* 5,000,000 100% brokerage Amman 2006
Tamkean Leasing Company** 10,000,000 95% Leasa financing Amman 2006
Management
Al- |stethmari Lalamwaael and oparation ol
Selselat Al Imdad Company 3,000,000 94% bonded stores Amman 2010
Jordanian Company for Facloring
Factoring *** 30,000 100% raceivables Amman 2011
Providing loans
Jordan Trade Facilities 16,500,000 94.9% and facilitias Amman 2016
Trade Facilitias for finance
feasing 2,000,000 594.9% Lease financing Arnman 2016
Bindar Trade and Invastment Providing loans
Company**** 20,000,000 91.8% and facilities Amman 207

Aayan Trading, Agencies &
Investment Company"*** 50,000 91.8% Investment Amman 2017

Aakean Invastment
Company*™* 30,000 91.8% Investment Amman 2017

Bindar Lease Financing
Company**** 1,000,000 91.8% Lease financing Amman 2017

Li ]

Based on a decision agreed upon by the Board of Directors in their extra ordinary meeting held
on 5 June 2017, the paid in capital has been decreased by JD 5,000,000 to equal an authorized
and paid in capital of JD 5,000,000. The procedures to decrease the capital were campleted on
2 July 2017.

Based on a decision agreed upon by the Board of Directors in their extra ordinary meeting heid
on 13 November 2017, the paid in capital has been increased by JD 5,000,000 to equal an
authorized and paid in capital of JD 10,000,000. The procedures to increase the paid in capital
were completed on 21 November 2017,
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LA ]

Jordanian Company for Factoring was eslablished on 21 December 2011 and has not yet
starled operating at the date of these consolidated financial statements.

**** During the year ended 31 December 2017, the bank acquired 91.8% of Bindar Trade and

2.4

Investment Company (which owns 100% of Aayan Trading, Agencies & Investment Company,
Rakeen Investment Company and Bindar Leass Financing Company) thraugh its subsldiary
(Tamkesn Leasing Company), through purchasing 18,369,851 sharaes with JD 1 par value. The
acquisition cost was JD 16,532,866 and the fair value of net assets amounted to JD 22,131,242
which generated an income of JD 5,598,376 recarded within the consolidated statement of
income and disclosed under note (33).

The financial stalemenls of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same accounting policies
adopted by the Bank. Changes are made to the accounting policies of subsidiaries, when
recessary, to align them with accounting policies adopted by the Bank.

Subsidiaries are investees controllad by the Bank. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Bank obtains control of
the investee and ceases when the Bank loses control of the investee.

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of nst profit or loss and net assets not owned
directly or indirectly by the Bark in its subsidiaries and are presented in the consolidated
statement of income and within equity in the consolidaled statement of financial position
separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders of the Bank,

Segment Information

A business segment is a group of assets or operations Jointly engaged in providing an
individual product or service and a group of related products or services subject to risks and
retums different from those of other business segments. It is measured according to the
reports used by the General Manager or other key decision makers at the Bank.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an enlity engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment subject to risks and retumns
different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

Financlal Assets at Fair Value through Statement of income

It Is the financial assets held by the Bank for the purpose of trading In the near future and
achieving gains from the fluctuations in market prices in the short term or trading margins.

Financlal assels al fair vaiue through profit or loss are Initially stated at fair value at
acquisition date (purchase costs are recorded at the consolidated statement of income upon
acquisition) and subsequently measured at fair value. Moreover, changes In fair value are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income including the change in fair value resulling
from translation of non-monetary assels stated at foreign currency. Gains or losses resulting
from the sale of these financlal assels are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Dividends and interests from these financial assets are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.
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2.6

2.7

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets to / from this category except for the cases
specified in International Financial Reporting Standards.

It is not allowed to classify any financial assets that do not have prices in active markets and
aclive dealings in this item.

Direct Credit Facllities

Represents financial assets which have fixed or agreed payments which the bank submitted
in the first place and these financial assets do not have quoled prices in active markets.

Direct credit facilities are recorded at amortized cost after deducting the provision for the
direct cradit facilities and interest and commissions in suspense.

A provision for the impairment in direct credit facilities is recognized when it is obvious that
the financial assets of the Bank cannot be recovered, there Is an objective evidence of the
exisience of an event negatively affecting the future cash flows of the direct credit facilities,
and the impairment amount can be estimaled. The provision is taken to the consolidated
statement of income. Inlerest and commissions on non-performing credit facilities are
suspended in accordance with the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Impalred credit facilities, for which specific provisions have been taken, are written off by
charging the provision after all efforls have been made to recover the assels. Any surplus in
the provisions is taken to the cansolidated statemant of income, while debt racoveries are
taken to income,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehansive Income

Those financial assels represent the investments in equity instrumants held for long term.

Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially stated at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated
statement of cother comprehensiva incoms and within owner's equity, including the
changes in fair value resulting from translation of non-monetary assets stated at foreign
currency. Gain or loss from the sale of these investments should be recognized in the
consoclidated stalement of comprehensive income and within owner's aquity, and the
balance of the evaluation reserve for these assets should be transferred directly to the
retained earnings not to the consolidated statement of income.

No impairment testing is required for those assets.

Dividends are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.
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2.8

29

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assels at amortized cost are the financial assets which the Bank's management
intends according to its business model to hold for the purpose of collecting the
contractual cash flows which comprise the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding,

Financial assels are recorded at cost upon purchase plus acquisition expenses.
Moreover, the issue premium \ discount is amortized using the effective interest rate
method, and recorded to interest account. Provisions associated with the decline in value
of these investments leading to the inability to recover the investment or parts thereof are
deducted. Any Impairment is registered in the consolidated statement of income and
should be presentsd subsequently at amortized cost less any impairment losses.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the assef's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective Interest rate.

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets from / 1o this category except for certain
cases specified at the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (and In the case of
selling those assets belore its maturity date, the rasults should be recorded In a separate
account in the consolidated statement of Income, disclosuras should be made in
accordance to the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards),

Fair Value

Fair value represents the closing market price (Acquisition of assels/ Sale of liabilities) of
financiat assets and derivatives on the dale of tha consolidated financial statements. In
case the declared market prices do not exist, active trading of some financial assets and
derivatives is not available, or the market is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of
several methods including the following:

- Comparison with the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and
conditions.

- Analysis of the estimated future cash flows and discounied cash flows at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characleristics.

Evaluation of long term assets and liabilities that bears no interest in accordance to
discounted cash flows using effactive Inlerest rate, premiums and discounted are
amortized within interest revenue or expense in the consolidated statement of income.

The evaluation methods aim to provide a fair value reflecting the expectations of the
market, and take into consideration markst factors, risks and expected benefits, at the
time of evaluation of the financlal instruments. In case the fair value of an investment
cannot be measured reliably, it is stated at cost less any impairment.
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2.10

21

212

impairment in the Value of Financial Assets

The Bank reviews the values of financial assets on the date of the consolidated statement
of financial posilion in order to determine if there are any indications of impairment in
their value Individually or In the form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the
recoverable value is estimaled in order 1o determine the impairment loss.

Impairment is determined as follows:

Impairment In financial assels recorded at amortized cost represents the difference
between the book value and the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at
the original interest rate.

The impairment in value is recorded in the consolidated statement of income. Any surplus
in the following period resulting from pravious impairment in the value of debt instruments
is taken 1o the consolidated statement of income and any impairment in the value of
equity instruments is taken to the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value. Moreover, property and equipment (except for land) are depreciated

according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives using the following
rates:

%

Buildings 2
Fixtures, equipment and furniture 10-25
Vehicles 15-20
Computers 20
Decorations 25

When the carrying values of property and equipment exceed their recoverable values,
assets are written down to the recoverable value, and impaiment losses are recorded in
the consolidated statement of income.

The usaful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year. In case
the expected useful life is different from what was determined before, the change in
estimate is recorded in the following years, being a change in estimate.

Froperty and equipment are derecognized when disposed of or when there is no
expecled future benefit from their use or disposal.

Provigions
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the consolidated

statement of financial position as a result of past events, it is probable to setile the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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2.13 Provision for Employees End-of-Service indemnities

2.14

2.15

2.16

2,17

The employees' end-ol-service indemnities provision is calculated at a rate of one month per
service year for contracted employees more than 60 years old.

The required provision for end-of-service indemnities for the year is recorded in the
consolidated statement of income while payments to departing employees are deducted from
the provision amount.

Cost of Issuing or Purchasing Bank Shares

Any costs that resull from purchasing or issulng bank sharss are charged to retained
earnings (net of the tax effect relating to those casts, if any). If the underwriting process or
purchase process was incomplete, these costs are charged to the consolidated siatement of
incame.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover, 1axable
income differs from income declared in the consolidated financial statements becauss the
latter includes nontaxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in the current year but
deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities, and
items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculaled on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the prevailing laws,
regulations, and instructions in Jordan.

Deferrad taxes are taxes expecled 1o be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing
ditferences between the value of the assels and liabllities in the consolidated financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount, Deferred tax Is calculated on the basis of
the liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position according to the rates
expected lo be applied when the tax liability is settied or deferred tax assels are recognizad.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial statements, and
reduced in case it is expected that no benefit will arise therefrom, partially or totally.

Accounts Managed on Behalf of Customars

This item represents the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers and is
not part of the Bank's assets. The fees and commissions for managing these accounts are
shown in the consolidated statement of income. Furthermore, a provision is taken against the
decline in the value of capital-guaranteed portfolios managed on behalf of customers.

Offsetting

Financia! assets and financial liabllities are offsel, and the net amount is reflected in the
consofidaled stalement of financial position only when there are legal rights lo offsat the
recognized amounts, the Bank intends to settle them on a net basis, or assets are realized
and iabllities settled simultaneously,
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2.18

219

2.20

Realization of Income and Recognition of Expenses

Interest Income is realized and expenses are recognized using the effective interest rate
method, except for interest and commission on non-performing loans which are not
recognized as revenue but recorded in the interest and commission in suspense account
until they are received in cash.

Expenses are recognizad on the accrual basis.
Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided.

Dividends are recorded when realized (decided upon by the General Assembly of
Shareholders).

Recognition of Financial Assats

Financial assets are recognized on the trading date which is the date the Bank commits itself
to purchase or sell the financial assels.

Financial Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

For hedge accounting purposes, financial derivatives are stated at fair value. Hedges ars
classified as follows:

- Fair value hedge:
Hedge for the change in the fair value exposures of the Bank's assets and liabllities.

When the conditions of effective fair value hedge are met, the resulting gain or loss
from re-measuring the fair value hedge is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

When the conditions of effeclive portfolio hedge are met, the gain or loss resulting
from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value as well as the change In
the fair value of the assels or liabilities portfolio are recorded in the consolidated
staternant of Income for the same period.

- Cash flow hadge:

Hedge for the change in the current and expected cash flows exposures of the Bank's
assets and liabilities.

When the conditions of effective cash flow hedge are met, the gain or loss of the
hedging instruments is recognized in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive Income in owners' equity. Such gain or loss is transferred o the
consolidated statement of income in the period in which the hedge transaction
impacts the consolidated statement of income,
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- Hedge for net investment in foreign entities:

When the conditions of the hedge for net invesiment in foreign entities are met, fair value
is measured for the hedging instrument of the hedged net assets. In case of an effective
relationship, the effective portion of the loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is
recognized in the consolidated slatement of other comprehensive income and in owner's
equity. The Inefiective portion is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The
effeclive portion Is recorded in the consolidated statement of income when the
investment in foreign entilies Is sold.

When the conditions of the effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss restilling from the
change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the consolidated
statement of Income in the same period.

2,21 Financial Derivativas for Trading

2,22

223

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading such as forward foreign currency contracls,
future interest rate contracts, swap agraements, and foreign currency options is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position under other assets or other liabilities as the
case may be. Fair value is measured according to the prevalling market prices, and if they
are not available, the measurement method should be disclosed. The change in their fair
vaiue is recognized In the consolidaled statement of income.

Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Assats sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a future date continua to
be recognized in the consolidated financial stalements as a result of the Bank's continuous
contro! over these assels and as the related risks and benefits are transferred to the Bank
upon occurrence. They also continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted
accounting policies. Amounts received against these contracts are recorded within liabilities
under borrowed funds, The difference between the sale price and the repurchase price is
recognized as an interest expense amortized over the contract period using the effeclive
interest rate method.

Purchased assels with comesponding commitment to sell at a specific future date are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements because the Bank has no control aver
such assets and the related risks and benefils are not transferred to the Bank upon
occurrence. Payments related to these cantracts are recorded under deposils with banks and
other financial institutions or loans and advances in accordance with the nature of each case.
The difference between the purchase price and resale price is recorded as interest revenue
amortized over the life of the contract using the effective interest rale method.

Assels Seized by the Bank

Assels seized by the Bank are shown under “other assets® at the acquisition value or fair
value, whichevar is tower. As of the consolidated financial slatemenls date, these assets are
revalued individually at fair value. Any decline In their market value is taken 1o the
consolidated stalement of income whereas any such increase is not recognized. A
subseguent Increase is taken to the consolidated statement of income to the extent it does
not exceed the previously recorded impairment.

Provision Is provided against sized assets with more than four years aging according 1o
central bank of Jordan regulation
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2.24

225

intangible Assats

{a) Goadwill

The goodwili represent the positive difference between the cost of acquisition or purchase
price of the associate or subsidiary and the company's net asset falr value at the date of
acquisition.

The goodwill resulting from investment in subslidiary is disclosed in a separate note as
intangible asset, as for goodwilli resulting from investment in associate it's disclosed as pan
of investment account and it gels impeired over the period, when its value goes down,

impaiment test for goodwill is perfarmed at the date of each financial statement, which is
the resuit of a decrease in cash flow generated by goodwill recoverable vaiue at the date of
the financial compared {o the cost of goodwill recorded in the books, in such cases ihe
goodwill impairment amount Is disclosed in the Income statement.

{b) Other intangible assets
intangible assets purchased in an acquisition are stated at fair value at the date of
acquisition. Intangible assets purchased other than through acquisition are recorded at cost.

Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful lifa.
Intangible assets with definite useful aconomic lives are amortized over thelr useful lives and
recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of income. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment as of the consolidated financial statemenis date,
and impairment loss is treated in the consolidated stalement of income as an expense for the
period.

No capitalization of internally generated intangible assets resuiting from the Bank's
operations is made. They are rather recorded as an expsnse in the consolidated
statement of income for the period.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the consolidated
financial statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the
impaired inlangible assets are reassessed, and any adjusiment is made in the
subsequent period.

Software and computer programs are amortized over their estimated useful economic
lives at a rate of 26% annually.

Foreign Currency

Transaclions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange rates
prevaiiing at the date of the transaction.

Financial assets and financial liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the average rates prevalling on the consolidated statement of financial position date
and declared by the Central Bank of Jordan.

Non-monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies and recorded at
fair value are franslated on the date when their fair value is determined.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transiation are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income.

Translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recorded as part of the change in fair value.
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2,26 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash balances with the Central Bank of Jordan and
balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within three months from
purchase date, less balances dus to banks and financial insfitutions maturing within three
months and rastricted funds.

(3)  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of the accounting policies
require the Bank's management to perform assessments and assumptions that affect the amounts
of financial assets and liabilities, fair value reserve and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Moreover, these assessments and assumptions affect revenues, expenses, provisions, and
changes in the fair value shown within the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.
In particular, this requires the Bank's management lo issue significant judgmenis and assumptions
to assess future cash flow amounts and their timing. Moreover, the said assessments are
necessarily based on assumplions and factors with varying degrees of consideration and
uncertainty. In addition, actual results may differ from assessments due to the changes resulting
from the conditions and circumstances of those assessments in the future.

A provision is set against the lawsuils raised against the Bank. This provision is subject to an
adequate iegal study prepared by the Bank's legal advisors. Moreover, the study highlights potentia!
risks that the Bank may encounter in the future. Such lsgal assessments are reviewed periodically.

A provision for performing and non-performing loans is taken on the bases and estimates
approved by the Bank's management in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The outcome of these bases and estimates fs compared against the
adequacy of the provisions as per the Central Bank of Jordan's instructions. The strictest
outcome that conforms to International Financial Reporting Standards is used for determining
the provision,

Impairment loss Is booked after a sufficient and recent evaluation of the assets seized by the
Bank has been conducted by approved surveyors. The impairment loss is reviewed periodically.

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the general
condition of these assels and the assessmenl of their useful economic lives expected in the
future. Impairment loss (if any) is taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Management frequently reviews the financial assels stated at cost to estimate any decline In their
value. Impaimment loss (if any) s taken to the consolidated statement of income as an expense for
the year.

Management estimates the impairment in fair value when the market value reaches a certain limit
indicative of the amount of impairment loss, which doesn't conflict with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and the instructions of the Regulatory authorities.

Fair Value Hierarchy:

The Bank determines and discloses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are calegorized in their entirety, segregating fair value measurements in
accordance with the levels defined in IFRS. Differentiating betwesn Level 2 and Level 3 fair vaiue
measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are observable and whether the unobservable
inputs are significant, may require fudgment and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure
fair value, including consideration of factors specific to the asset or Itability.
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Goodwill:

impairment test for goodwill is performed yearly or if there is any indicator for impairment. Any
Impairment losses cannot be recovered at later periods.

The management believes that the estimates adopted in the preparation of the consolidaled
financtal statements are reasonabla.

{4) CASH AND BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANK OF JORDAN

This llem consists of the following:

31 Decamber 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD

Cash on hand 15,544,812 10,754,130
Balances at ceniral banks of Jordan.
Current and demand accounis 4,270,138 6,152,449
Term and notice deposits 19,000,000 -
Statutory cash reserve 45,355,163 43,643,438
certificate of Deposit 24,200,000 30,700,000
Total 108,370,113 81,250,017

- Except for the statutory cash reserve, there are no restricted balances as of 31December 2017
and 2016.

- There are no balances malured in a period exceeding three months as of 31 December 2017
and 2016.

{5) BALANCES AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

This item consists of the following:

Local Banks and Financial Foreign Banks and Financial
Institutions Institutions Total
31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 207 2016 2017 _2016
JD JD JD JD JD JD

Current accounts and

demand account 2,297,778 57,219 26,677,077 28,879,084 28,974855 28,937,203
Depasit maturing within

thras months 19,104,518 29,641,362 23,533,661 15,323,033 42,638,179 44,965,205
Tatal 21,402,296 29,698,581 50=21 0,738 44,203,917 71,813,034 73,802,498

- Non-interest bearing balances at banks and financia! institutions amounted to JD 29,073,432 as
of 31 December 2017 against JD 29,012,435 as of 31 December 2016.

- There are no restricted balances as of 31 December 2017 and 20186.
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(8] DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Local Banks and Financial Foreign Banks and

Institutions Financigl Institutions Tolal
31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
JD JO JD JD JD JD

Deposits 8,012,143 5,500,000 - - 9,012,143 5,500,000
Cash margin deposited

by subsidiaries agalnst

direct credit facilties® 2,001,314 - - - .. 2001314 -
Total 11.013457 5500000 - - 11,013,457 5,500,000

* Restricted deposits amounted to JD 2,001,314 as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil)
represent cash margins deposited by subsidiary against direct credit facilities .

Deposits balances maturing within & period exceeding three months amounted to JD 11,013,457
as of 31 December 2017 against JD 5,500,000 as of 31 December 2016.

(7) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH STATEMENT OF INCOME

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
JD JD
Companies shares 1,853,986 2,089,000
investment funds 1 39,116
Total 1,853,887 2,128,118

8 FINANCIAL AS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
JD JD
Quoted shares 34,755,373 21,851,633
Unguoted shares * 2,882 669 2,586,281
Total 37,638,042 24,437,914

Falr value of the unquoted shares has been valued using the net book value method which Is
considered the best valuation method for such investments.

- Realized losses on the sale of shares at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounted to JD 216,961 for the year ended 31 December 2017 against JD 672,071 for the year
ended 31 December 2016, which was directly recorded to retained eamings in owner's equity.

- Cash dividends on financial assets amounted to JD 2,112,075 for the year ended 31 December
2017 against JD 1,554,592 for the year ended 31 Decamber 2016.
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{9)  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COSTS

Quoted financial assets:
Governmental bonds

Companies bonds and debentures
Total

Unqueted financial assets:
Governmental bonds

Companies bonds and debentures

Total

Total financial assets at amortized cost

Bonds and bills analysis:
Analysis bonds and treasury bills
Fixed rate

Fleating rate

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD
31,003,864 83,129,767
13,066,386 5,278,208
44,070,250 88,407,975
27,577,833 16,942,111
33,500,000 14,793,784
61,477,833 31,735,895
105,548,083 120,143,870
63,223,336 98,119,954
42,324,747 22,023,916
105,548,083 120,143,870

- Financial assels at amortized costs amounting JO 12,375,420 have been sold during the year

ended 31 December 2017, causing a recognized profit amounted JO 116,368.

{10) DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES-NET

Individuals (retail):
Overdraft

Loans and discounted bills *
Credit Cards

Real estate loans

Companies

Corporate:

Qverdraft

Loans and discountad biils *

Medium and small entities
Overdraft
Loans and discounted bills *

Government and public sector

Total

less: Provision for impairmenl in direct credit facilities
Less: Interest In suspense

Net Direct Cradit Facilities

28

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

JD JD

11,672,635 12,439,777
108,112,143 78,798,397
17,450,407 15,908,808
148,867,482 122,880,088
64,926,554 79,883,162
275,951,816 213,864,066
7,822,845 7,878,533
49,578,813 36,590,188
11,366 24,203
684,394,061 568,277,220
30,471,752 23,314,696
7.882 415 6,332,239
646,039,894 538,630,285
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NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

Net after deducting interest and commissions received in advance of JD 23,904,333 as of 31
December 2017 against JD 18,908,609 as of 31 December 2018,

- Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 48,419,234 which is equivalent to 7.1% of total
direct credit facilities as of 31 December 2017 against JD 38,509,592, which is equivalent to
6.8% of total credit facilities as of 31 December 2016.

- Non- performing credit facllifies excluding interest and commissions in suspense amounted 1o
JD 40,639,734 which is equivalent to 6% of tolal direct credit facilities after excluding interest in
suspense as of 31 December 2017 against JD 32,183,664 which is equivalent to 5.7% of total
credit facilities after excluding Interest in suspense as of 31 December 2016.

- Direct credit facilities granted to/guaranteed by Jordan Government as of 31 December 2017
amounted JD 11,366 against JD 24,203 as of 31 December 2016.

- Part of the collaterals of the due instalments and finance lease contract related to Jordan Tarde
Facilities Company with an amount of JO 31,722,337 (Cheques and promissory notes) as of 31
December 2017 against 16,937,500 as of 31 December 2016 were deposited as collaterals
against the loans and overdraft of the company.

Provision for Impalrment in Direct Credit Facilities:

The movement on the provision for impairment in direct credit facilities was as follows:

Companies
Real estate Medium and
Individuals loans Corporate Small Tolal
JD JD JD JD JO

2017
Balance at 1 January 6,625,733 1,461,513 10,081,195 5,146,255 23,314,696
Balancas generated from

investment in subsidiaries 1,724,220 478,670 - 481,311 2,684,201
Provision (recoveries) Charge

for the year 432,706 (12,047) 4,207,142 122,212 4,750,013
Used during the year {written-

off)” (22,471) - {251,980} {2,707) (277,158)
Balance at year end 8,760,188 1,928,136 14,036,357 5,747,071 30,471,752
2016
Balance at 1 January 4,416,993 1,220,208 9,867,535 3,773,109 19,277,846
Balances generated from

investment in subsidiaries 3,218,243 809,524 - 1,013,888 5,141,855
{recoveries) provision Charge

for the year (809,202) (668,220) 213,660 370,417 (894,045)
Used during the year {written-

off)* {199,801) - - (11,159) (210,760)
Balance at year end 6,625,733 1,461,513 10,081,195 5,146,255 23,314,686

- Non-performing credit facilities provision amounted to JD 30,145,536 as of 31 December 2017
against JO 23,052,493 as of 31 December 2016 in addition the waich list provision amounted 1o
JD 326,218 as of 31 December 2017 against JD 262,203 as of 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

- The provisions no longer needed due to seftlements or rapayments of debts and transferred
against other debts amounted to JD 5,444,375 as of 31 December 2017 against JD 8,043,963
as of 31 December 2016.

- As of 31 December 3017 the provision for impalred cradit facilities representing watch list and
non-performing credit facililies are calculated based on the individual customer and not the
portfolio except for the amount 880,327 JD which has been calculated on the bases of the
portfalio as at 31December 20186.

Interest in Suspense:

The movement on the interest in suspense is as follows:

Companias
Real eslale Medium and
Individuals loans Corporate Small Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD

2017

Balance at 1 January 1,710,435 626,434 2,834,888 1,160,482 6,332,239
Interest in suspense for the yaar 755711 299,088 589,601 594,264 2,238,664
Interest transferred to revenue {47,553) {34,748) (237,281) {107,752) (427,334)
Interest in suspanse written-off * {20,059) (122,443) (117.912) (740) (261,154)
Balance at year and 2,398,534 768,331 3,069,296 1,646,254 7.882,415
2016

Balance at 1 January 2,000,226 1,661,116 6,181,662 1,238,353 11,081,557
Interest in suspense for the year 394,319 92,289 767,187 297,911 1,551,706
Interest iransiermrad to revenue (31,313) {925,392) {3,827,503) (371,834) (5,156,042)
Interest in suspense written-off * {652,797) {201,579} (286,658) (3,948) (1,144,882)
Balance at year end 1,710,435 E26,434 2,834,888 1,160,482 6,332,239

According 1o the decision taken by board of directors of the Bank and the senior management
of Its subsidiaries, non performing credit facilities with their related interest in suspense have
been written off amounted to of JD 538,312 during the year ended 31 December 2017 against
JD 1,355,742 for the year 2016.

Net credit facilities are distributed according to economic sector taking into consideration that
all loans granted inside Jordan as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

JD JD
Financial 40,371,455 17,871,592
Indusirial and mining 89,088,850 65,471,661
Trading 136,711,705 117,341,253
Real estates 148,867,482 124,713,596
Constructions 43,959,276 27,682,729
Aagricultural 650,937 596,518
Tourism reslauranis and public 75,800,662 80,959,912
Shares 14,418,136 15,140,085
Government and public sector 11,366 24,203
Individuals/others 134,414,092 118,475 671
Total 584394061 568,277,220
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2017

{11) PROPERTY AND PLANT — NET

Equipment,
fixtures and
Lang* Buildings® _ furniture _Vehicles  Computers Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
2017
Cost
Balance at 1 January 9,341,886 14,862,146 12,868,559 446,985 2,366,932 39,886,508
Balances generated from
Investment in subsidiaries - - 612,913 35,750 221,070 869,733
Additions 1,007,180 157,933 1,460,517 159,938 52,307 2,837,875
Disposals - (199,615) (344,147) (131,788} {7,933) (683,484)
Translers - 738,571 99,000 - - 837,571
Balance at 31 December 10,349.066 15,559,035 14,695,842 510,884 2,632,376 43,748.203
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January - 1,830,223 8,319,300 206,672 1,718,797 12,174,992
Balances generaled from
investment in subsidiaries - - 419,320 12,513 169,932 601,765
Additions - 349,459 1,521,091 56,916 226,926 2,154,392
Disposals - (199,6806) (322,938) (48,451) {7.920) {578,915)
Balance at 31 December - 2,080,076 9,936,773 227,650 2,107,735 14,352,234
Net baok valua of fixed assels
as of 31 Decembar 10,349,066 13,478,959 4,760,069 283,234 524,641 29,395,969
Advanced payments on
purchase property and
equipment and projects
under construction - 2.637 265,359 - - 267,996
Net property and equipmen? 10,349,066 _ 13,481,596 _5.025,428 263234 524641 29.663 865
2016
Cost
Balance at 1 January 9,341,886 14,360,096 11,294,518 321,879 2,107,284 37,425,643
Batances generated from
investment in subsidiaries - 502,050 200,475 84,500 103,248 890,273
Additions = 804,403 86,336 170,952 1,057,691
Disposals - - (81,270) (45,730) {25,930) {152,930)
Transfers - - 854,433 - 11,398 665,831
Balance at 31 December 9,341,886 14,862,146 12,868,559 446,985 2,366,932 39,886,508
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January - 1,223,505 6,697,733 164,000 1,402,008 9,487,248
Balances generated from
investment in subsidiarias - 392,621 131,485 29,710 80,526 634,342
Additions - 314,097 1,571,335 51,827 262,192 2,199,451
Disposals - o (81,253) (38,885) (25,929) {146,047)
Balance at 31 December . 1,930,223 6,319,300 206,672 1,718,797 12,174,992
Net book value of fixed assets
as of 31 December 9,341,886 12,831,823 4,549,259 240,313 848,135 27,711,516
Advanced paymenls on
purchase property and
equipment and projects under
construction ** - 738,571 123,522 - - B62,083
Net property and equipment 9,341,886 13,670,494 4,672,781 240,313 648,135 28,573,609
A
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2017

- Property, plant and equipment include fully depreciated items amounting to JD 8,383,691 as of
31 December 2017 against JD 5,613,101 as of 31 December 2016.

. This lem conlains pledged lands and buildings by JD 7,272,207 as of December 2017 to the
interest of Specialized Company for Lease Financing against JD 6,222,084 as at 31 December
20186, against finance iease provided for Al- Istethmari Latemweel Selselat Al Imdad Company
(subsidiary) for an amount of JD 4,352,624 as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:

JD 4,622,487).

{12) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2017 2016
Down payments  Computer
for acquiring  Systems and Intangible
programs Software Goodwill** Total assels
JD JD JD JD JD
Balance at beginning of the year 30,295 1,942,570 1,430,588 3,003,463 1,955,825
Balances generated from
investment in subsidiaries - - - - 7,380
Additions* 128,655 67,891 - 196,546 1,692,856
Disposals - 5,621 - 5,621
Less: Amaortization for the year - 560,501 - 560.501 652,698
Transfers {30,255) 30,295 - - -
Balance at year end 128,655 1,074,634 1,430,508 _ 2.633,887 3,003,463

*

programs.

Additions represent the amounts paid to acquire and improve the banking systems and

**  The bank acquired 94.7% of Jordan Trade facililies Company during the year 2016, through fis
subsidiary (Tamkeen Leasing Company), which owns 100% of Trade Facilities for Finance
Leasing Company), as the Bank purchased 15,390,385 shares with 1 JD stated value. The
acquisition cost JD 20,774,620 and the net assels fair value JD 19,344,022 on the date of
acquisition that raised a goodwill amounted to JD 1,430,598,

An impairment test has been performed for goodwill on 31 December 2017, in which the Goodwill

was not impaired
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13 QOTHER ASSETS

31 December 31 Dacember
2017 2016
JD JD

Accrued interest and revenue 1,577,171 1,586,917
Prepaid axpenses * 3,278,040 3,151,092
Assets seized by the Bank ** 39,288,705 43,096,352
Refundable deposits 511,974 436,480
Post-dated Cheques 21,501 134,747
Balances related to fraudulent transactions - Nat *** 1,039,200 1,039,200
Purchase acceplances 1,066,710 3,463,986
Others 4,511,817 2.204,511
Total 51,295,118 55,123,285

Abdoun Area for 18 years that are paid in advance.

L L

Prepald expenses include JD 1,7 million which represent the rent of the branch for the bank in

The Central Bank of Jordan's instructions require disposat of assets saized by the bank during a
maximum period of two years from the date of foreclosure and the Central Bank of Jordan can
extend that period for a maximum of another two consecutive years. The balance is presented net
of related impairment provision for the amount of JD 34,392 as of 31 Dacember 2017 against to
dD 424,688 for the year 2016, and provision for assets seized for more than four years aeccording
to the instructions of Central Bank of Jordan for the amounts of JD 2,018,362 at 31 Decemnber
2017 against JD 1,361,841 as of 31 December 2016.

The movement on assets seized by the Bank was as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Seized Other Seized JD JD
Assals Assels * Total Total
Balance at beginning of the year 42,383,027 713,325 43,096,352 47,413,603
Balances generaled from investment in 453,352 - 453,352 902,069
Additions 1,672,957 - 1,672,957 2,889,852
Dispasals (4,954,407) (713,325) (5,667,732) {7,098,409)
{(Provision) Amount reversed from
impairment of assets selzed by the
Bank - (99,474) {99,474) 71,663
Used from assets seized by the Bank
impaimment provision 390,297 99,474 489,771 -
Provision for assels seized according to
the instructions of Central Bank of Jordan {656,521) - (656,521) (1.081.426)
Balance at year end 39,288,705 - 39,288,705 43,095,352
33
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INVEST BANK (PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

This item represent provision against sized assets for matured facilities and bank sized it for

more than four years and the provision against seized assets for more than two years and less
than four years according to the instructions of Central Bank of Jordan.

provision as shown below:

Balance related to fraudulent transactions
Deduct; Provision related to this balance

Deduct: Proceeds from insurance company

Net balance related to fraudulent transactions

This item Includes net balance related to the fraudulent transactions after deducting the related

31 December 31 Decembar
2017 2016
JD JD
12,974,700 12,974,700
10,435,500 10,435,500
1,500,000 1,500,000
1,039,200 1,039,200

The Bank was imposed to embezzlement transaction in the balances at banks and financial
Institutions accounts which led 1o a loss of approximately JD 12.9 million. This primarily relates to the
possibility of collusion between some of the bank’s employses. All the necessary legal procedures
were taken by the bank's management and a provision for an amount of JD 10.4 million was booked
for the transaction as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 after netting the amounts
expected fo be recovered and the repossessed assels, and deducting proceeds from the insurance
company with an amount of JD1.5 million. The case is still pending at the court of Amman of to all

procedures were performed of the General Attomey.

14 NKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS DEPOSITS

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Inside Outside

Inside Cutside

Jordan dordan Total Jordan Jordan Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Current accounts 35516 2,670,306 2,705,822 35517 2,365638 2,401,155
Time and notice 27,012 7500000 7,527,012
Deposits* 31,843 ) 31,843
Total 62,528 10,170,306 10,232,834 67,360 _ 2,365.638 2,432,998

of December 2017 and 2016.

This amount does not include any amount maturing within a period exceeding three months as
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(15) CUSTOMERS DEPOSITS

Smali and Govarnment
Individuals medium and Public
{Retail) Corporats entities sector Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD

31 December 2017

Current and demand 73,860,039 65,296,308 14,876,217 5,502,817 158,535,381
accounts

Saving deposils 29,941,038 792,473 302,750 - 31,036,261
Time and notice deposits __ 296,102,686 154,641,855 _ 10,996,972 _ 23,786,927 485,528,440
Total 399:903-763 220,730,636 26,175,939 29,289,744 676,100,082
31 December 2016

Current and demand 62,273,422 50,732,701 15,755,634 1,210,301 129,972,058
accounts

Saving deposits 25,962,399 524,055 286,619 1,877 26,774,950
Time and notice deposits 259,964,238 162,691,700 9,087,447 34,149,100 465,892,485
Deposils certificates 177,250 - - - 177,250
Total 348,377,308 213,948,456 25,129,700 35,361,278 522,816,743

- Govemment and Public sector deposits amounted to JD 29,289,744 which is equivalent to 4.3%
of tolal customer's deposits as of 31 December 2017 agafnst JD 35,361,278 which is equivalent
to (5.7%s} of total customer’s deposits as of 31 December 2016.

- Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 187,800,384 which is equivalent to 27.8% of total
customers deposils as of 31 December 2017 against JD 153,426,582, which is equivalent to
(24.6%) of total customers deposits as of 31 December 2016.

- Restricted deposits amounted 1o JD 9,658,105 which is equivalent to 1.4% of total customer's
deposits as of 31 December 2017 against JO 8,808.286, which is equivalent to 1.4% as of 31

December 2016.

- Dormant deposits amounted to JD 6,272,210 as of 31 December 2017 against JD 5,382,574 as

of 31 December 2016.

(16) CasHMARGIN

Cash margins on direct credit facilities

Cash margins on indirect credit facilities

Other margins
Tolal

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD
25,298,983 26,700,506
16,153,425 11,388,571
5,750 5,750
41,458,158 38,004,827
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INVEST BANK {PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

{18) BONDS

This Item represents a five year bond issued on 10 March 2015 by Bindar for Trade and Investment
{subsidiary) with annual interest rate of 8.9% applicable for the first two years and variable interest rate
each six months for the years after based on the best customers’ average interest rates at referenced
banks added up to it risk margin of 1%, interest is due on 10 March and 10 September of each year.
Interest rate have been amended 1o reach 10% starting 10 September 2017, and the bond matures on

10 March 2020,

{19) SunDRY PROVISIONS

This itemn consisls of the following:
Balance at

beginning of  Investments Used During reversedto  Balance at
the year  in subsidiaries _ Additions the year revenue year end
31 December 2017 Jo JD JD JD JD JD
Provision for emplayees
end-of service indemnity 33,093 - 13,600 - - 46,693
Provision for lawsuits
against the Bank
{Note 4B} 540,620 - 35,492 76,300 - 599,812
Others 36,373 69,415 32,149 25,988 55,000 56,949
710,086 69,415 81,241 102,288 55,000 703,454
31 Decamber 2016
Provision for employees
end-of sarvice indemnity 19,627 - 13,466 - - 33,093
Pravision for lawsuits
against the Bank
(Note 48) 1,062,463 22,956 215,613 608,094 52,318 640,620
Others - 636,373 - - 500,000 36,373
1,082,090 658,329 229,079 608,094 852,318 710,086

20 INCOME TAX

A, Provision for income lax
The movement on the pravision for income tax is as follows:

31 Dacember

31 December

2017 20186
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,501,454 6,208,287
Balances generated from investment in subsidiaries 441,712 278,912
Total income tax paid (6,921,968) (7,117,609)
Refunded from priar year income tax (68,857) -
Prior years' income tax 50,458 143,763
Income tax for the year 3,981,981 6,588,101
Balance at year end 3,984,780 6,601,454

Income tax provision for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was calculated
according to applicable laws, regulations and Intemational financial reporting standards.
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Income tax expense for the year consists of the following:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD

Income tax on profit for the year 3,881,981 6,888,101
Prior year's income tax 21,601 163,372
Delerred tax assels for the year (1,346,263) (1,228,276)
Amortization of deferred tax assels 1,304,006 855,082
Deferred tax liabilities for the year 1,946 -
(Amortization of deferred tax liabilities) - (6,312)
Balance at year end 3,963,271 6,770,967

The legal income tax rate in Jordan for the Bank (Parent Company) is 35% and for the subsidiaries
is 24%.

Tax status of the Bank

The Bark has reached to a final settlement with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to the
end of the year 2015.

The Bank provided its tax declaration for the year 2016 on the period specified legally and Sales Tax
Department did not revise record until the date of preparation of these financial statements.

As per the opinion of the Banks' management and its tax consultant, the Bank will not have any tax
liabilities exceeding the booked provision as of 31 December 2017.

Tax status of Al Mawared for Financial Brokerage Company (Subsidiary Company)

The Company has reached lo a final setflement with the income and sales tax depariment for the
period since inception on 5 June 2006 till the end of the year 2014, Moreover, Income and sales 1ax
department accepted years 2012, 2013 and 2014 tax relurns without any amendments.

The Company has submitted the Income Tax report for the years 2015 and 2016 upon legal due
date and the Income and Sales Tax Depariment have not yet reviewed it yet until date if preparation
of these financial statements.

As per the opinion of the company’ management and its tax consultant, the company will not have
any tax liabilities exceeding the booked provision as of 31 December 2017.

Tax status of Tamkeen Leasing Company (Subsidiary Company)

The Company has not submitted its tax retum for the period since inception on 31 October 2006 to
31 December 2009 as it did not operate during thase years.

The Company has reached to & final settiement with the income and sales tax department for the
years 2010 10 2015,

The Company has submitted the Income Tax repart for the year 2016 upon legal due date and the
Income and Sales Tax Department have not yet reviewed it.
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The company has submitted the Income Tax report for sales upan legal due dats, and the Income
and Sates Tax Department has reviewed the report for the period until 31 August 2015.

As per the oplnion of the company's management and its tax consuitant, the company will not have
any tax ilabiiities exceeding the booked provision as of 31 December 2017.

Tax status of Al Istethmari Letamweel Selsalat Al Indad Company (Subsidiary Company)

The company has reached 1o a final settiement with the income and sales tax department until the
end of the year 2010.

The Company has submitted the Income tax report for the years 2011 till 2014 upon legal due date
and has settled all announced outstanding liabllities within the legal due dates. Tax reports have
been accepted by the Income and sales tax department without any amendmenis.

The Company has submitted the Income tax report for the years 2015 and 2016 upon legal due date
and the Incoma and Sales Tax Depariment have not yet reviewed it up till date of preparation of
these financial statements.

The Company has submitted the Sales tax report upon legal due date and no deferred tax liabllities
were applicable until date of preparalion of these financial statements,

As per the opinion of the company’s management and its tax consullant, the company will not have
any tax liabilities exceeding the booked provision as of 31 December 2017,

Tax status of Jordan Trade Facilities Company (Subsidiary Company)

The Income and Sales Tax department had finalized its review and issued a final clearance up lo
the year ended 31 December 2011, except for the years 2009 and 2010.

The Company had raised a lawsuit against the income tax department in the related courts over the
year 2009 taxes, and the case is slill periods at the court of cassation.

As per the opinion of the Company’s lawyer and tax consuliant, there are no tax llabilities imposed
to the Company against the year 2010.

The Company has reached 1o a final settlement with the income and sales tax department for the
years from 2011 until 2014,

The Company has submitted the Incomsa tax report for the years 2015 and 2016 upon legal due date
and the Income and Sales Tax Department have not yet reviewed it up till date of preparation of
these financial statements.

The Company has submitted the Sales tax report upon legal due date, and the sales and income tax
department had reviewed the tax reports submitied over the years from 2009 to 2013.

The Subsidiary “Jordan Facilities for Finance Lease L.L.C.” submitted corporate income tax retum
up fo the year ended 31 December 2014 and it was accepted under the sample basis and has
submitted the Income Tax report for the years 2015 and 2016 upon legal due date and the
Income and Sales Tax Department have not yet reviewed it until date of preparation of these
financial statements,
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The Subsidiary “Jordan Facilities for Finance Lease L.L.C." submitted corporate sales tax
return upon legal due date and the Income and Sales Tax Department have reviewed lhe report
submitted up till year end 2013,

As per the opinion of the company’ management and ils tax consultant, the company and its
subsidiary will not have any tax liabilities exceeding the booked provision as of 31 December
2017,

Tax status of Bindar for Trading and Investments (Subsidiary Company)

The Company has reached to a final settlement with the income and sales tax depariment until the
end of the year 2015,

The Company has submitted the Income tax report for the year 2016 upon legal due date and the
Income and Sales Tax Department have nol yet reviewed it up il date of preparation of these
financial statements.

The Company has submitted the Sales tax report upon legal due date and paid all due taxes until 31
Cctober 2017.

The Subsidiary “Bindar for Finance Leasing Company” submitted corporate income lax return up to
the year ended 31 December 2015, and had submitted the income tax report for the year 2016 upon
legal due date, the Income and Sales Tax Department have not yet reviewed it up till date of
preparation of these financial statements.

The Subsidiary “Bindar for Finance Leasing Company” registered submitted per the sales taxes
starting 1 January 2017, were corporale sales tax retum have been submitted and due taxes were
pald uniil 31 October 2017.

The Subsidiary “Aayan Trading, Agencies & Investment Company” has reached to a final settiement
with the income and sales tax department until the end of the year 2015 and has submitted the
Income tax report for the year 2016 upon legal due date and the Income and Sales Tax Department
have not yel reviewed it up till date of preparation of these financial statements.

The Subsidiary “Rakeen Investment Company” has reached to a final settlement with the income
and sales lax department until the end of the year 2015 and has submitted the Income tax report for
the year 2016 upon legal due date and the Income and Sales Tax Depariment have not yet
reviewed it up till date of preparation of these financial stalements,

As per the opinion of the company’ management and ils {ax consullant, the company and its
subsidiary will not have any tax liabilities exceeding the booked pravision as of 31 December 2017.

40



b

'(6) SHA Jo uondope Auses ey o paje|al s Youm SSOf Jo Jijosd YBNa BNfeA JjB} 1B SIISSE BjoUBLY U UjBS UO SeNWGE) XB) PaLs|ep
sjussaides 9L0g J8qwiadaq LE 0 SB N ISujeBe £10g Jaquaseq |E JO SB 9p6‘L ar JO JUNOWE UB S31ey) ‘uolppe u| “Ainba S15UMD U} BAIBSB:
8NnjBA JIB| JaDUR UMOYS S} Yolym BuWooul aaisueyeidwios seyto yBnoiy anfea ye) 1 s)esse |BjouBuY Jo UOjENJEAS By} Uo sujeB |Suebe souqel Xe)
siuesaidal yojym 91,02 Jeqwaseg LE Jo S 058'21L8'e ar 1suiebe /102 1eqweas( LE 0 S8 522 L0L'G AF JO WUNOWE UB epnjau; SeRRGEY XB] penejeq

058'ele'e \e2'€oL’'9 OEL'Egr'al 996'0E8'0L  205'128 - 982'vie'e
- 9¥6'l 655'S 6555 - - e (8} SH4I Jo vondope Apea jo (oey3
ose'zie'e sie'lot's Lir'aLv'sl lov'sgg'ol  20s'LZ9 - gsg'pie'e antases en|ea Jje) u| ebuayy
E3iige) Xu ) peuajeg -8
S19'688'9 ES58/5'2 lES'BVE'Ve  SOcvIG Y  GSBGSLY Sl IiLe 55661818
1elov 05z 61 00055 000'S5 0Eg'Vil - gLl Suojjelauntual siojoallp Jo piroq piedun
LE£5'82€ £00'39E 695'1S0'L  9ES'VIG Spe'108 - 849'96 snuoq seekojdwa piedun
SZr'gso'e Ser'ece’'e oos'ser'ol - - - 00S'SEY'OL SUgjjoesuey
Jua|npnesy o) pejejal sesus|eq jsuiebe uojsiAclY
009'6 cog'v ono'ce 000'02 ooo'or e ooo'ov Auvedwog pajemeyy |y / BesnU0g SI0joBIP JO pJeoq pledun
659'059 620°112'2 gee'orl S1e'orl sLLLLL'E - S|UBLWLSAAL|
pue Bujpei] 1wpuig — 198p [NPGNOP 10§ UCISIADIY
v20'v02'L 0sg'682'L ep5'8e2's 202'2bp'L FAN:TAN - £26'010'5 Aurdwon
selilioed eped) uepof — |qap [N)GROP Jo) UOISIAQI
- 260'L11 906'/9t 906'28b 5 - - Buiseaj asuBLl] UDANWE) —1QBpP [NJIGNOP J0) LO|EIADI
- vSe'by EGE'¥8L E6E'¥EL S - . Auedwod pepw) |y — 198p [NPGNOP J0) LUOISIACIY
SLo'0ey 18s'Lep ¥Gi'eBs'L . GOE'® - ESL'LBL'L abeiayoiq jejousuy U| JuBWRdLS 10) UISIACIY
vho'aLy lgv'ans £9e'gl0'e 096'020'1 gev'ger - 1a'1ee'l SiB8A IN0j UBY} BI0W PBUMD PIZ|S |855E JOj LOISIADLY
1y9'apL 1E0'21 26E'PE - 162'068 - 689'vey yueq ey} Aq s1asse pazyas uj Jusuuedw) o) uoisiaold
vL1BOE - - - 128’088 - 22e'06e ojjojod uo jusuurdw) J0j UGISIADLY
Po'6p z6b'ile EER'ZET &v'061 L5P'66 - 1#8'L¥L 18] Yo1e M s1qep 10j UOISIADI]
- 0802 00s'6e 005'62 - - - Auedwos samaey 6pRI) UBPIOP /SIINSME] JO} UDISIADI
L12'vee 609’661 21e'045 266'S ooe'ss = 0zo'ore yuag ay) 1suele sinsme| 10} uojs|aold
£85'L) EbE'9L £69'9b 009'EL - - E£60'EE SanuWepLy asjaIes-jo-pue seeioidwe o) uosiacld
51965y XBL paLejeq v
pepn{ou sjunosay
ar ar ar ar ar ar ar
Xejpausja  xu) paueja( aoueECq SUOI|IPPY peseajal SeuEIMSgNS  aouBeq
Buipugy suUNoWwyY u| SuuuBeg
Juawi}seau|
alLoe FAR 4 Li02

laquieds(] LE Jaquweadsq LE
:Bupmoo) ay Jo sis|SUGI WeY SIU L

sojifliqer/s19sse Xey partejRg  °g
2102 43aw393g 1t

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIJ G3LYAIIOSNOD 3HL O] SILON
(ANYAWNOD ONIOTOHIUYHS DI1BNG) NNVE LS3AN]

A EEEEDENSEEREEEDEERED DS R R ® B

= R ——— P~ Emn Ay B o BEEm e e B O e T




EE D EEES ST EEEEEEEEEEEDEBREEREE E

INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

This item represents the deferred tax benefits expected from the provision booked against the
balances related lo the fraudulent transactions {note 13), and the management believes these
amounts can be recoverad from in the futures.

The movement on deferred tax assets / liabililies was as fallows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Assels Liabllties Assels Liabilities

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,883,615 2,812,850 5,365,815 2,073,433
Balances generated from investment in

subsidiaries 650,681 - 1,143,506 -
Additions 1,346,263 3,473,409 1,229,278 739,417
Deductions 1,304,006 183,038 855,082 -
Balance at year end 7,576,553 6,103,221 6,883,615 2,812,850
C. The summary of the reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit is as

follows:
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD

Accounting profit for the year 19,738,346 22,378,226
Naon-taxable profit (12,723,597) (6,042,126)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7,503,476 6,024,570
Taxable profit 14,518,225 22,360,670
Income tax percentage for the Bank" 35% 35%
Deferred taxes percentage for the Bank* 5% 35%
income tax percentage for the subsidiary companies 24% 24%
Deferred tax percentage for the subsidiary companies 24% 24%

*  Excluding the profits generated from invesimenits outside the Kingdom, that are subject to a 10% tax.

{21) OTHER LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
JD JD

Accepted and certified checks 1,327,514 1,041,832
Accrued intarest 5,026,964 3,230,269
Sundry creditors 1,432,082 3,326,202
Brokerags payable 437,657 544,726
Dividends payable 281,247 216,913
Daposils on safe deposit boxes 138,678 110,871
Accrued expenses 1,343,279 1,201,307
Ofther liabilities 2,896,798 2,312,756

12,884,199 12,074,876
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INVEST BANK {(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

22) _ Paip-In CAPITAL

Authorized and pald-up capital amounted to JD 100 miliion distributed over 100 million shares at a
par value of JD 1 per share as of the end of the year 2017 and 2016.

23 RESERVES

The detalls of tha reserves as of 31 December 2017, are as follows:

a- Statutory Reserve:

This account represents the accumulated amount of appropriations from income before tax for
prior years at 10% according to the Banks Law. This amount is not to be distributed to

shareholders.

b- General Banking Risks Reserve

This item represents the general banking risks reserve according to the Cenlral Bank of

Jordan's instructions.

c- The detalls of the restricted reserves are as follows:

31 December 31 December
Reserve 2017 20186 Natura of restriction
JD JD
Restricted according to the
Statutory reserve 25,004,513 23,570,771  Banks law and Companies
Law
Restricted according to the
General banking risks reserve 6355000 531,284 Central Bank of Jordan
24) FINANCIAL ASSETS VALUATION RESERVE - NET
This item consists of the following:
31 Dacember 31 December
2017 2016
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,491,519 3,839,176
Unrealized gain 10,057,596 1,726,001
Deferred tax liabilities (3,288,425) (745,729)
Losses on sale of financial
assels through other comprehensive income 216,861 672,071
Balance at end of the year 12,477,651 5,481,519

The financial assets revaluation reserve is presented net after deducting deferred tax liabilities of
JD 6,101,275 as of 31 December 2017 against JD 2,812,850 as of 31 December 2016.
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INVEST BANK (PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NoOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

(25) RETAINED EARNINGS

This item consisis of the following:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JO JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 27,663,922 23,984,252
Protit for the year 15,073,707 15,297,799
Transierred to reserves (2,487,458) (2,946,058)
Dividends (10,000,000) (8.000,000)
losses on sale of financlal assets through other comprehensive
income {216.961) (672,071)
Balance at end of the year 30,033,210 27,663,922

Included In retained eamings is an amount of JD 7,576,553 restricted against deferred tax
assets as of 31 December 2017 against JD 6,883,615 as of 31 December 2016.

Included in the retained earnings a restricted amount of JO 1,039,200 as of 31 December 2017
(and 31 December 2016: JD 1,039,200) based on Central Bank of Jordan request, for the
remaining balance of fraudulent transactions.

Included in retained eamings an amount of JD 418,812 as of 31 December 2017 against JD

415,074 as of 31 December 2016, which represenis the effect of early adoption of IFRS (9).
These amounts are restricted amounts and cannot be utilized unless realized as instructed by

the Jordan Securities Commission,

- Distributable retained earnings to the Bank's shareholders amounted JD 15,396,614 as of 31
December 2017 against JD 19,326,033 as of 31 December 2016.

- The balance of the retained eamings include diffsrences revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through the income stalements amounting JD 3,655 as of 31 December 2017 against NIL

as of 31 December 2016.

26 PROPOSED DIVIDENDS

The board of directors recommended to the general assembly of shareholders to distribute JD 10
Miliion for the year 2017 during 2018 which is equivalent to 10% of the Bank's capital and it is

subject to the approval of the general assembly of shareholder.

In 24 April 2017, and based on the general assembly meeting of shareholders JD 10 million were
distributed from year 2016 retained samings which is equivalent to 10% of the Bank’s capital.
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING CoMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(27) NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Non- Non-
Non- controling  controlling

Controliing  interest share interest share Controlling  interest share

Non- Non-
Non- controliing  controlling
inlerest share

Interes! share of net profit  of net assels Interest share of net profit  of net assets

% JD JD % JD JD

Tamkeen leasing

company 5 230,994 885,890 10 40,859 654,896
Al-lstethmari

letamweel Selselat

Al Imdad 3] 25,620 338,342 6 39,877 312,722
Jordan Trade

Facilities Company 5.09 421348 1,705,036 5.33 228724 1,338,100
Bindar Trade and

Investments 8.15 23406 1,987,342 - - -
Total 701,368 4,916,610 309460 2305718

(28) INTEREST INCOME

Direct credit facilities:
Individuals (retail):
Loans and discounted bills
Overdraift

Cradit cards

Real estate loans

Companies

Corporate

Loans and discounted bills

Overdrakht

Medium and small companies

Loans and discounted biils

Overdraft

Government and public sector
Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at amortized cost

2017 2016
JD JD

6,909,719 4,959,336
1,092,242 1,172,189
1,917,050 1,387,901
12,985,669 10,899,686
17,487,678 19,373,102
5,601,199 5,627,510
3,676,122 1,740,183
571,725 728,428
3,497 289
876,649 652,756
1,184,819 509,500
4,271,457 5,167,919
56,577,826 52,218,799
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

(29} INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits at banks and financial Institutions
Customers Deposits:

Current and demand accounis

Saving accounts

Time and deposils subject 1o notes
Certificates of deposit

Cash margins

Borrowed funds

Bonds

Fees to Deposit insurance corporation

{30) __NET COMMISSIONS INCOME

Commissions Income:
Direct credit facilities
indirect credit facilities
Brokerage commissions
Other commissions

Total Commissions Income
Less: Commissions expense
Net Commissions Income

(31) GaIN ON FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE
This item consists of the following:

Gains from forelgn currencies trading / dealing
Gains from ravaluation

2017 2016
JD JD
276,520 30,776
368,045 200,593
265,056 243,602
16,045,637 12,015,798
1,796 5,664
561,985 503,469
6,482,928 3,549,077
27,348 -
1,197,024 1,095,179
25,226,339 17,644,158
2017 2016
JD JD
6,551,057 4,587,641
1,817,701 1,732,841
238,285 266,375
1,418,381 1,070,837
10,125,424 7,857,694
1,451,390 1,187.570
8,674,034 6,470,124
2017 2016
JD JD
843,550 596,606
48,331 37,260
991,941 633,866
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

32) ___GAINS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH STATEMENT OF INCOME
This item consisis of the following:

Realized Unrealized Dividends

gain losses income Total

JD JD JD JD
2017
Companies shares 208,278 (106,736) 43,943 145,485
Total 208,278 (106,736} 43,943 145,485
2016
Companies shares 236,853 (40,118) 31,547 228,282
Total 236,853 (40,118) 31,547 228,282

(33) _ INcoME GENERATED FROM ACQUISITION OF A SuBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the bank acquired 91.849% of Bindar Trade &
Investment Company (which owns 100% of Aayan Trading, Agencies & Investment Company,

Rakeen Investment Company and Bindar Lease Financing Company) through

its subsidiary

(Tamkeen Leasing Company). That was through purchasing 18,369,851 shares with JD 1 par value.

The acquisition cost was JD 16,532,866 and the fair value of net assets amounted to
which raised an Income of JD 5,598,376.

JD 22,131,242

The fair value of Trade and Investment Company on the date of acquisition Is as follows:

Fair valua Book value
7 December 2017 7 December 2017
JD JD
Cash and cash equivalenls 3,618,533 3,618,533
Financial assets at fair value through the statement of comprehensive 132,564 132,564
income

Direct credit facilitias — netl 32,926,920 32,926,920
Property and equipment 267,968 267,968
Olher assels 3,950.173 3.799.446
Total Assets 40,908,158 40,745,421
Borrowed funds 11,015,318 11,015,318
Bonds 5,000,000 5,000,000
Other Habilities 785,662 795,682
Total Liabilities 16,810,980 16,810,980
Nat Assets 24,095,178 23,834,451
Non-controlling inlerest 1,963,936

Net asset acquired 22,131,242

Amount paid for the bank's shara (91.849%) 16,532,866

Bargain generated from acquisition 5,598,376

Cash flow from acquisition

Amount paid for the bank's share {91.849%) {16,532,866)

Net cash from subsidiary 3,818,533

Net cash usad in acquisition (12,914,333)
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(34) OTHER INCOME

Bonded income

Telecommunication income

Gain on sale of assets seized by the bank
Reversed from written off debis

Other

35 MPLOYEES EXPENSES

Salaries, benefits, bonuses and employess' allowances
Bank and subsidiaries share in social security

Medical expenses

Per diems

Travel and transportation expenses

Employees fraining expense

Employees life insurance expense

36 OTHER EXPENSES

Rent

Stationery and Printing

Advertisements

Subseriptions and fees

Telecommunication and courier expenses
Maintenance, repair for buildings and equipment
Maintenance, repair and programme licences
Credit cards and accounts incentives’
Insurance

Legal fees

Water, electricity and heating

Professional fees

Donations

Credit cards expense

Board members bonus and transportation
Others

48

2017 2016
JD JD
1,930,350 2,044,457
292,392 226,589
90,788 283,784
605,338 749,509
590,990 333,684
3,430,858 3,638,023
2017 2016
JD JD
12,748,625 11,478,849
1,313,343 1,148,760
766,679 673,501
4,410 6,114
48,871 46,315
119,995 115,792
24,347 38,090
15,026,270 13,507,421
2017 2016
JD JD
996,315 707,416
143,183 231,783
769,403 1,081,463
772,429 679,206
864,448 821,225
408,050 333,313
890,779 797,374
1,146,826 855,550
144,701 179,885
167,853 192,516
385,122 424,879
674,870 712,645
93,349 128,680
267,584 211,714
486,647 436,016
1,226,307 875,588
9,417,866 8,669,253
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NoTES To THE CONSOLIDAYED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
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{37) _EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS QF THE BANK

2017 2016
JD JD
Income for the year/attributes to banks sharsholders 15,073,707 15,297,799
Weighted average number of shares * 100,000,000 100,000,000
JO/ Share JD/ Share
Earnings per share from the income for the year attributable
Bank sharsholders 0.151 0.153

-

The basic eamings per share (EPS) for the current year profit attributed to parent owners

equals to diluted (EPS) , since tha bank did not issue any financial instruments which may affect
the basic (EPS)

38) __CAsH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December
2007 2016
JO JD

Cash on hand and balances at the Central Bank mature within three

months 108,370,113 91,280,017
Add:
Balances at banks and financial institutions mature within three months 71 613,034 73,902,498
Less:
Banks and financfal institutions deposits mature within three months 10,232,834 2,432,998
Cash and Cash Equivalents 169,750,313 162,719,517

35 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The consolidated financial statemenits include the financial statements of the bank and the subslidiary
companies as follows:

Company's Capital
Company's Name Ownership 2017 2016
% JD JD

Al-Mawared for financial brokerage 100 5,000,000 10,000,000
Tamkeen leasing Company 85 10,000,000 5,000,000
Al Istethemari Letamwee! Selselat Al Imdad 94 3,000,000 3,000,000
Jordan factoring 100 30,000 30,000
Jordan Trade Facilities Company 94.9 16,500,000 16,500,000
Trade Facilities Company for Finance lsasing 94.9 2,000,000 2,000,000
Bindar for Trade and Investment Company 91.8 20,000,000 -
Aayan Trading, Agencies & Investment

Company 918 50,000 -
Rakeen Investment Company 9t.8 30,000 -
Bindar Company for Lease Financing 91.8 1,000,000 -
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The Bank entered into transactions with members of the Board of Directors, executive management,
subsidiary companies and major shareholders within the normal banking practice according to the
commercial interest rates and commissions. All credit facilities granted to related parties are within
the normal course of the banks operation and no provision was laken, except for the below:

The following represents a summary of transactions with related parties:

Ralaled Party Tatal
Cthers (Employess,
Employass Relalives,
Aelatives of Members
Board of Direclors ~ of the Board of
Membersand  Directors, Execulive
Executive Managsment and 31 Dscember 31 Decamber

Subsidiarss* Management _ Controfled Campanies 2017 2016
JD Jo JO Jo JO

Statement of financlal position llems:
Credit acilitias 6,790,836 5,175,504 £0,588,990 62,555,330 54,434,285
Provision lor impairment in cradit facilitias - - 717,692 717,692 -
Financial as3ets al amortized costs 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 -
Deposits, cumant accounts and cash

margin 3,307,879 4,112,392 30,312,585 37,732,880 36,789,404
Off-Financlal Fosition Statement

Items:
Lettars ol credit - - 48,554 48,554 140,263
Lstters of guarantas 1,355,500 €67,181 7119779 9,142,480 9,574,504
Statement of incoma
Interest and commissions raceived 756,472 242,338 3,434,561 4,433,371 7,077,938
Intarast and commissions pald 88,937 204,443 B32.681 1,126,041 314,834
Provision for impalmment in credit facliities - - 692,204 692,304 {5,079,618)
Additional Information
Waltch list credh faciities - - 223,476 223,478 -
Provision for Walch list credit faclities - - 3,545 3,545 -
Non-performing cradit facifties - - 1,331,963 1,331,963 -
Provision for non-perfoming cradit

faciiies - - 717,692 717,692 -

-

Such balances and transactions are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements and are
shown for explanatory purposes only.

Maximum credit interest rata In Jordanian dinars 21% Minimum credil interast rata In Jordanian dinars 2.25%
Maximum credil interest rate in other citrrencies 12% Minimum credit interast rate in other currencies 3%
Maximum debit interest rate in Jordantan dinars 6.1% Minimum debit intargst rate in Jordanian dinars 0%
Maximum debit interest rate in other currencies 0.1% Minimum debil interest rate in other currencies 0%
Maximum credit commission rale 1% Minimum credit commission rate 0%

Executive management salaries and benefits amounted to JD 3,260,527 for the year endad 31
December 2017 against JD 2,645,738 for the year 2016.
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{40)  RISK MANAGEMENT
General framework of risk management

The bank has Identified contro! levels (defense lines) by placing the framework for the fallowing
control levels as follows:

Business units: represents employees that are part of first line defense, which responsible for
risk management and related control proceduras.

Independent risk management function: the employees of risk management depariment
represent the second line defense by making them responsible over arranging risk management
sfforts and facilitating the supervision process over the implemented procedures from the bank.

Compliance Department: the employaes of compliance department represent another part in
the second line defense by assure of complying with the implemented procedures, laws and
regulations.

Internal audit: Intemal audit employees represent the third line defense, and they are
responsibls for performing an independent review for control procedures and systems that are
related to risk management at the bank level.

In addition, the Bank had established a risk management cormitiee from the board of directors in
order to manage the risks that the bank is exposed to. These risks are managed {o mitigated the
impact of these risks 1o ensure proper alignment with the bank strategy

Risk Management Commiltee's tasks are as follows:

A,

F.

To supervise the management of the risk policy and ensure that the Risk Management and
Compliance Department achieves its objectives according to the approved poficies,

To ensure appropriate and sufficient support for the Risk Management and Compliance
Department In achieving its objectives in accordance with the approved policies and
procedures and the Central Bank's instructions.

To ensure the availability of work procedures for risk management in compliance with the
various management risk policies at the Bank.

To ensure the use of the new techniques and method of management and assessment of risk
management.

To identify basis and principles of risk management and risk acceptance, risk transfer, risk
refuse and risk mitigation.

To review the periodical reports of the Risk Management and Compliance Department.
To ensure that the Bank adheres to the Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

To review the internal calculation of capital adequacy for the bank and present it to the board
of direclors, taking in consideration the bank strategies and plans.

Ensure the independency of the risk department.
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The Compliance Management, the committes's objectives includes adding value for the Banks'
operations through enhancing the effectiveness of risk management, internal control procedures and
corporate governance. That is done through ensuring compliance with the Bank's intemal policies,
and to all regulations, instructions, rules of conduct, standards and banking practices established by
local and international bodies and reporis to the board of directors over the Bank compliance.

Compliance Committee’s tasks are as foliows:

A.

Ensuring compliance with the rules, instructions and regulations that the Bank complies to,
and the existence of frame work for the code of conduct, and following extend of implamenting
the provisions of the legislations and the requirements of the supervisory authorities.

Ensuring having integraled general framework for internal control and working to improve it if
necessary and to restore the institutional governance mechanisms.

Reviewing transactions of the related parties with the Bank and recommending them to the
Board of Directors prior to their release.

. Ensuring availability of sufficient qualified resources to manage the compliance and training

them, and is responsible for assessing the performance of the compliance manager and staff
and determining their remunaration.

. The review and adoption of any disclosures in the annual report relating to risks and internal

control environments.

Adopting the Compliance Policy, the Money Laundering Policy and Financing of Terrosism,
and assessing the degree to which the Bank manages compliance management at least once
a year, and reviewing it once changes are made.

. Monitor and follow-up the implemenlation of compliance policy and compliance with the

Bank's internal policies, intemational standards and related legislation.

Review reports on customer complaints and make sure that appropriate steps are taken to
follow up on these complaints.

Fully comply with the requirements of the US Income Tax Act (FATCA) 1o avoid any risks
arising from non-compliance with these requirements.

Take the necessary measures to promole the values of integrity and proper professional
practice within the Bank in such a way that makes compliance with laws, regulations and
instructions, a primary objective that should be reached.

Reviewing and submitting annual compliance plans.
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In addition, the Bank had establishad the Risk Management and Compliance Committee have set the
risk management framework for the Bank. Moreover, the Board of Diractors has established the Risk
Management and Compliance Commitles, formed by the Board members and executive
management. Its objeclive is 1o monitor and control the various risks (credit risks, operating risks,
market risks and compliance risks) or any other risks the Bank might be exposed to.

The department manages the Bank's various risks (credit risk, operating risk, market risk, compliance
risk, and other risks) within the general framework of risks management. The role of the deparment
can be summarized as follows:

Risk Identification.

Risk Assessment.

Risk Control / Mitigation.
Risk Monitoring.

The Bank managed 1o prepare the required plans and action points to ensure the compliance with the
Central Bank of Jordan instructions related to (Basel 1ll) and intemal capital adequacy assessment
process.

40, A) CREDIT RISKS

Credit risks are defined as the probability of not fully recovering the debt or interest in the specified
time causing financial losses to the Bank.

Moreover, credit risk represents the major portion banks are exposed to in general. In recognition of
this reality, the Bank has accorded credit risk management great significance through managing credit
risks al the portfofio level, economic sector level, group level, or single customer lavel, taking into
consideration the achievement of an appropriate return on the risks the Bank is exposed fo.

To achieve this, based on the risk management strategy, the Bank has performed the following:

1. The risk appetite and cellings are based on credit risk commensurate with the acceptable risk
limits adopted by the Board of Directors and Risks and Compliance Department. Risk limits
are set for each client, group and econamic sector, In order to mitigate the Bank’s exposure to
credit risk concentrations.

2 The bank implemented a credit risk rating system from Moody's company for Corporate and

retail companles, this wil impact on the quality of credit portfolic and will help in taking the
appropriate credit decisions.

3. Cradit risk Is mitigated through credit risk factors (collaterals such as real estate, shares or
other) commensurate with the credit risk faced by the Bank to cover any unexpected
subsequent events,

4, Proper legal and credit documentation is applied for all conditions associated with the credit
facilities.
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1-  Credit risk exposure (less the impairment provision and interest In suspense and befare

guarantees and other risk - mitigating factors):

On financial position statement items:
Balances at the central bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Deposits at banks and financial institutions

Credit facilities:

individuals

Real estate foans

Companies

Corporata

Small and medium institutions {SMEs)
Government and public sector

Bonds, bills and debentures:
Financial assets at amortized cost
Other assels

Total on financial statement items

Off financial position statement items:
Letters of guarantee

Letlers of credit

Letiers of acceptance

Unutilised facility limits

Total off financial statement items

Total on and off financial statement items

2017 2016
JD JD

82,825,301 80,495,887
71,613,034 73,902,498
11,013,457 5,500,000
126,076,463 98,810,812
146,171,015 120,802,141
323,772,117 280,831,145
50,008,333 38,161,984
11,366 24,203
105,548,083 120,143,870
4,216,556 6,671,330
931,256,325 825,343,870
63,619,651 78,223,226
14,113,336 7,613,523
5,847,162 8,438,672
43,106,027 28,634,407
156,686,176 122,909,828
1,087,942,501 948,253,698

To mitigate the above credit risk exposures, the Bank uses the following risk mitigating factors within
the conditions of the credit policy set by the Bank:

@oewn=

Cash collaterals.

Accepted bank guarantea.

Real estate morigages.

Listed sharas collaterals.

Vehicles and equipment morigages.
Financial inventories collaterals
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2- Credit exposures according to the degree of risk:

Companies
Banks and
Government other
Real estate Smalland  and Public Financial
Individuals _loans Corporaie medium Seclor institutions Total
JO JD JD JO JD JD JD

31 December 2017

Low risk 6,237,803 - 8,260,149 988,563 151,418,364 - 166,904,879
Acceptabla risk 112,305,315 137,635,090 348,827,387 44,297,682 - 94,334,238 737,399,721
Of which is dus:*

within 30 days 82,228 981,113 4,091,363 72,044 - - 5226,748
from 31 lo 80 days 38,001 148,243 1,998,569 33,274 - - 2,218,087
Watch list 4742370 4745022 5,537,008 1,861,258 - - 16,886,658
Non-performing:

Substandard 1,290,268 732,600 683,450 887,924 - - 3,694,242
Doubtful 1,834,019 1,989,508 201,963 728,503 - - 4,753,993
Bad debt 10,825,410 3,784,253  16.843,608 8,537,728 - - __ 39,970,809
Total 137,235,185 148.857,482 380,353,565 _ 57.401.658 151,418,364 54,334,238 960,610,492
Less: Impairment

provision 8,760,188 1,928,136 14,036,357 5,747,071 . - 30,471,752
Interest in suspense 2,398,534 768,331 3,089,296 1,646,254 - -__ 7,882,415
Net 126,076,463 146,171,015 363,247,512 _ 50,008,333 151,418,364 94,334,238 831,256,325

- Credit exposures (financial assels and investments in financial assets) are disiributed according

to the credit classification as follows:

Government

and public Financial

Credit classilication sector institutions
JD JD

{AAA to -AA) - 21,256,147
{A+ TO -A) - 15,032,024
{BBB+ TO -BBB) - 12,509,262
(BB+ to -B) 151,418,364 16,949,630
Less than (-B) not classified - -
Not classified - 28,587,175

151,418,364 84,334,238




B EE S

1
o

F OB EEOCEENDEESSESRENERDDNEEGSGHEE®RE®S &N

INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NoOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

Companies
Banks and
Govemnmenl other
Raal estate Smalland and Public Financial
Individuals loans Corporate medium Sector Institutions Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD JD
31 December 2018
Low risk 7,141,472 - 508,320 777,328 180,591,968 - 193,619,088
Acceplable risk 79,718,180 117,162,845 299,363,258 31,204,312 - 79,402,498 606,651,094
Of which is due:*
within 30 days 190,244 258,812 7,012,854 129,216 - - 7,581,126
from 31 {o 60 days 73,886 41,451 3,299,299 82,569 - - 3,497,205
Watch list 7,334,657 3,534,943 13,449,595 1,691,836 - - 16,011,031
Non-performing:
Substandard 609,130 53,002 685,181 244,676 . - 1,591,999
Doubiful 917,194 858,025 10,280,128 B47,519 - - 12,912,864
Ead dabt 8,090,483 2,365,736 8,035,548 5,512,961 - - 24,004,729
Total 103,811,116 123,974,551 326,932,040 40,278,632 180,591,968 79,402,498 B54,990,805
Less: Impalment
provision 5,625733 1,461,513 10,081,195 5,146,255 - . 23,314,696
Interest in suspensa 1,710,435 626,434 2,834,888 1,160,482 - - 6,332,239
Nat 95,474,948 121,886,604 314,015,857 33,971,895 160,501,968 79,402,458 625,343,870

- Credit exposures (financial assets and investments in financial assets) are distributed according

to the credit classification as follows:

Government

and public Financial

Credit classificaticn sector institutions
JD JD

(AAA to -AA) - 13,055,160
(A+TO -A) - 10,321,525
(BBB+ TO -BBB) - 16,775,486
(BB+ 1o -B) 180,591,968 10,325
Less than (-B) not classified - S
Not classified - 39,240,002

180,591,968 79,402,498

the overdraft account becomes due whenever it exceeds the cefling.

The whole debt balance becomes dus when one of the installments or interest is due. Moreover,

Credit exposures include credit facilities, balances and deposils at banks in addition to financial

assets.
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The following table breaks down the fair value of collaterals held as security for credit facilities:

2017

Guarantaes against:
Low risk

Acceplabie risk
watch list

Non-performing:
Substandard
Doubtiul

Bad debt

ot it:

Cash margins

Real astate

Trada stocks

Vehiclas and equipment

2016

Guarantees agajnst;
Low risk

Acceptabla risk
walch list

Non-performing:
Substandard
Doubtiul

Bad debt

Of it:

Cash margins

Raal astate

Trade slocks

Vehicles and equipment

Companies
Real estale Small and
Individuals loans Corporale medium Total
JD JD Jo JD JD
6,237,803 . 8,260,149 988,563 15,486,515
33,420,961 139,318,336 167,189,542 6,461,384 246,390,223
36,515 8,548 4,552,608 224,845 4,822,516
675,563 957,868 1,324,020 95,820 3,053,271
1,018,403 1,484,054 1,561,387 186,780 4,258,624
2,629,494 4,129,526 2,289,085 6,532,039 15,580,144
44,016,739 145,908,332 185,178,731 14,489,431 389,591,293
6,258,198 - 8,326,981 988,563 15,573,742
27,563,178 145,808,332 146,363,890 10,635,397 330,470,797
- o 548,472 - 548,472
10,195,363 - 29,937 448 2,865,471 42,998,282
44,016,739 145,908,332 185,176,791 14,488,431 389.591,293
Companies
Real estate Small and
Individuals loans Comarate medium Total
JD Jb JO JD JD
7.41,472 - 5,108,320 777,328 13,027,120
59,227,957 115,331,487 136,497,409 1,141,400 312,198,253
425,697 802,367 1,365,397 222,147 2,815,608
250 - 85,654 - 85,904
a9 1,200,256 - 19 1,200,364
487,920 2,664,838 4,234,066 1,137,623 8,524,447
67,283,385 119,996,948 147,200,846 3,278,517 337,851,698
7,275,581 52,000 5,123,207 777,328 13,228,116
47,235,450 119,946,948 137,748,579 1,450,000 306,380,977
6,073,742 - 185,513 - 6,239,255
6,698.612 - 4,253,547 1,051,189 12,003.348
67,283,385 119.998.848 147.290.846 3,278,517 337,851,686

Guarantees fair value are evaluated when the facilities are granted based on acceptable evaluation
methods for these guarantees, in the subsequent periods the fair value is updated to markst prices or

rolated assets prices.
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Rescheduled Loans

These loans are loans previously classified as non-performing credit facilities but taken out there from
according to proper rescheduling. They have been classified as "debts under control (watch fist)" or
changed fo parforming and amounted to JD 7,157,825 as of 31 December 2017 against JD
11,650,355 for the year 2016.

Restructured Loans

Restructuring means rearranging credit facilities installments through increasing their duration,
postponing some installments, or increasing the grace period. Restructured debts amounted to JD
43,067,221 for the year 2017 against JD 31,058,839 for the year 2016.

Bonds, Bills, and Debentures

The following table illustrates the classification of bonds, bills, and debentures according to external
rating institutions:

2017
Within Financial
Assels atfair  Within Financial
value through assets at
Rating Grade profit or loss amortized cost Total
JD JD JD
Unrated - 46,966,386 46,966,386
Governmental - 58,581,697 58,581,697
Total - 105,548,083 105,548,083
2016
Within Financial
Assets atfair ~ Within Financial
value through assets at
Rating Grade profit or loss amortized cost Total
JD JD JD
Unrated - 20,071,892 20,071,892
Govermnmental - 100,071,878 100,071,878
Total - 120,143,870 120,143,870
58
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

{40.B} OPERATIONAL RISKS

Operational risk Is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes,
people and systems or from exiernal evenls. This definition includes legal risk.

Invesiment bank has implemented a Control and Risk Self-Assessment process for the
management of operational risk at the Bank through the use of an aulomated system named
CAHE. The Bank manages operational Risk on the basis of the following:

- Preparation of operational risk policy.

- Preparation of Operational Risk Accountability Policy and approved by bank board of
directors.

- Implement risk profile that determine risks and the mitigating controls for these risks for
ihe banks main depariments.

- Implement aulomatic system for operation risk management (CARE system) to
implement self-assessment methodology for risks and controls procedure.

- Build database for risks events and operational errors.

- Exprass an opinion over working procedure to evaluate the risks in it and the adequacy
of these implernented control procedures.,

- Reporting to the Board Risk Management Commitlee and the Executive Risk
Management Committee with needed reports.

In order to ensure the effectiveness and continuous enhancement of the Bank's Intemal Control
Department (ICD) which is part of the Risk Management group, monitors continuously the
Bank's activities with particular emphasis on primary activities,

Compliance Risk

This represents the risks that arise from the probability that the Bank may not comply with
{violate / transgress) the prevailing laws, regulations, instructions, banks laws, and code of
ethics issued by international and local regulatory authorities.

Compliance with the regulations and prevailing laws issued by the regulatory authorities
represents one of the most important risks which the Bank might be expased to, due to the
major financial losses resulting from the violation of the laws and instructions that affect the
Bank's reputation. Moreover, the past few ysars wilnessed many new regulations, instructions
and laws organizing the work of the various institutions. Accordingly, the need for managing the
compliance risk of the Bank Is necessary. Morsover, compliance enhances the efficiency of
managing risks and decreases the risk the Bank might be exposed to as a result of
noncompliance with the pravaliing laws and instructions.
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40.C) MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potentlal losses that may arise from the changes in market prices such as the
change in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and prices of shares and products.

The Bank periodically applies the appropriate methodology to evaluate market risks and sets
estimates for the probable economic losses based on a set of assumptions and changaes in
market conditions. The following are the methods used by the Bank to measure market risks:

1- Value at Risk (VaR)

2-Stress Testing

3-Stop Loss Limit policy

4-Monitoring open financial centers in foreign currencies.

CH-___Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk results from the potential change in interest rates, and consequently, the
potential impact on the cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments.

The Bank is exposed to interesl rate risks as a rasull of the timing gaps of repricing assets and
liabilities, These gaps are periodically monitored by the Assets and Liabilities Committee
(ALCO). Moreover, various hedging methads are used to remain within the acceptable interest
rate gap limfs.

- Sensitivity analysis:

31 December 2017

Increass in Impact on Owners® equity
Currency interast rate profits (losses) sensitivity
% JD JD
Us Dollar 2 47,103 -
Euro 2 6,776 -
GBP 2 (6,997} -
Japanese Yen 2 57,568 -
Other currencias 2 (15,335) -
Decrease in Impact on Owners' Equity
Currency interest rate profits {losses) Sensitivily
Y% JD JD
US Dolfar 2 {47,103) -
Euro 2 {6,776) -
GBP 2 6,997 -
Japanese Yen 2 {57,569) -
Cilher currencies 2 15,338 -
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31 December 2016

Increase in Impact on Owners' equity
Currency interest rate profits {losses) sensitivity
% JO JD
US Dollar 2 (80,698) -
Euro 2 (9,719) -
GBP 2 (2,714) -
Japanese Yen 2 868 -
Other currencies 2 {20,341) -
Decrease in Impact on Owners' Equity
Currency interest rata profits (lossas) Sansitivity
% JD JD
US Dollar 2 80,698 -
Euro 2 9719 -
GBP 2 2,714 -
Japanese Yen 2 (B68) -
Other currencies 2 20,341 -

C/2- _ Foreign currencies risk

(a) The following table fllustrales the currencies to which the Bank is exposed and the
potential and reasonable change in their rates against the Jordanian Dinar and the
related impact on the consolidated statement of income. The currencies positions are
monitored daily to ensure that they are within the determined limits. Moreover, the
related reporls are submitied to the Assels and Liabilities Committee and Board of

Diractors.
Change in Impact on
31 December 2017 foreign currency profits and Owners' Equity
Currency exchange rate losses Sensitivity
% JD JD
Euro +5 16,941 102,872
GBP +5 (17,493) -
Japanese Yen +5 143,922 -
Other currencles +5 (38,337) 8,288
Change in Impact on
31 December 2016 foreign currency profits and Owners' Equity
Currency exchange rate logses Sensitivity
% JD JD
Euro +5 (24,298) 22,032
GBP +5 (6,785) -
Japanese Yen +5 2,169 S
Other currencies +5 (50,852) -

If there Is a negative change, the effect will be equal with negative effact.
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C/3- _Risks of Changes in Shares Prices:

This represents the risk resulting from the decline in the fair value of the investment portfolio of
the shares due to the changes in the value of the shares indicators and the change in the value
of shares individually.

Impact on
2017 Change in profits and Owners' Equity
Indicator of indicator % losses Senstivity
Amman Stock Exchange 5 (7,584) (1,383,355)
Palestine Stock Exchange 5 (2,290) {104,186)
Intemational Stock Exchange 5 (66,313) {250,228)
Impact on
2016 Change in profits and Ownaers' Equity
Indicator of indicator % losses Sensitivity
Amman Stock Exchange 5 (25,476) {1,031,816)
Palesline Stock Exchange 5 - (66,581)
International Stock Exchange 5 (80,930) (123,500)
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2017

Second: Off financial pasition statement:

From one year More than 5
Up {o one year to 5 years years Total
JO JD JD JD
31 December 2017
Letters of credit and
acceptances 19,960,498 . - 19,960,498
Unutilised limits 43,106,027 - - 43,106,027
Guarantees 78,965,954 14,653,697 - 93,619,651
Operating lease contract
obligations 946,682 2,821,248 2,043,360 5,811,200
Capital liabilities 556,287 - - 556,287
143,535,448 17,474,945 2,043,360 163,053,753
From one
Up to one yearto 5 More than §
yaar years years Total
JO JD JD JD
31 December 2016
Letters of credit and
acceplances 16,052,195 - - 16,052,195
Unutilized limits 28,634,407 - - 28,634,407
Guarantees 69,374,093 8,849,133 - 78,223,226
Operating leass contract
abligations 642,728 2,240,688 1,445,748 4,329,164
Capital liabilities 11,804 - - 11,804
114,715,227 11,088,821 1,445,748 127,250,796

{41) SEGMENT ANALYSIS

(a) Information on the bank operating segments

The Bank Is organized, for managerial purposes, which measured according to reports used by
general manager and decision makers to the Bank into three major segments. Moreover, the Bank
owns subsidiaries: that conduct financial brokerage, finance lease, and bonded stores operation and

management.

- Individuals accounts: include following up on individual customers accounts, and granting them
loans, credit, credit cards, and other services.

- Corporale accounts: inciude following up on deposits, credit facilities, and other banking

services related to customers.

- Treasury: includes providing dealing services and management of the Bank's funds.
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INVEST BANK (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

42) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
{a) Description of Capital

According to the Central Bank of Jordan Law and in compliance with the capital adequacy
requirements, capital consists of many parts:

. Tier one: Primary consist of the banks going concem, which includes:

1. Commaon Equity Tier 1
2. Additional paid in capital Tier 1.

. Tier two: Primary consist of the paid in capital that will be used when going concern
issues arise.

. For all three types of paid in capital (CET1, AT1,T2) special slandards that the financial
instrument must meet to be classified in the right .

Additionally, the Bank complies with Article (62) of the Banks Law which requires the Bank to
appropriate 10% of its net profits in the Kingdom and continue to do so until the reserve
equals the Bank's paid-up capital.

(b) Regulatory Authorities Requirements Concerning Capital and Method of Fulfilling
Them.

The Bank considers the compatibility of the size of capital with the nature of risks it is
exposed to provided ihat paid-up capital is not less than the minimum required by the Central
Bank of Jordan and regulatory capitai, which is required to be:

1- For common equity Tire 1, not less than 6% of the market risk-weighted assets..

2- For paid in capital, not to be less than 7.5% of the market risk-weighted asseats.

3- For capital adequacy ratio not to be less than 12% of market risk-weighted assels

{c) How to Achieve the Objectives of Capital Management

The Bank's management aims at achieving the Bank's capital management objectives, a
surplus In operating income and ravenues, and the optimal utilization of the avallable sources
of funds so as to reach the targeted growth in shareholders’ equity through the Increase in
the statutory reserve, recognized proflts, voluntary reserve, and relained eamings.

The effect of capilal adequacy ratio is taken into considerations when entaring 1o
invesiments. Moreover, capital and its adequacy are monitored periodically, and capital
adequacy is calcuiated by the Risk Management and Compliance Department.

Capital risk was caleulated based on the central bank of Jordan regulations, which is
represented by Basel Ill as of 31 December 2017, and 31 December 2016 determinants.
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(d)  The amount the Bank considers as capital and capital adequacy ratio are as follows:

Primary capital items:
Subscribed and paid-in capital
Retained eamings (net of restricted amounis)

Financials assets fair value reserve in according with IFRS (9)

Statutory reserve
Total capital for common stocks

Monitoring changes {deductions from capital):
Goodwill or any intangibles assels

Delerred tax asssts generated from doubtiul debts
Investments in the capital of unconsolidated subsidiaries
Net equity

Tier Il of paid in capital:

Ganeral banking risks reserve {not more than 1,25%)
of risk weighted assets

Total

Adjustments (deductions form paid-in capital);
Investments in the capital of unconsalidated subsidiaries
Net supporting paid-in capital (Tier 1l)

Total Capital Structure

Total risk weighted assets

Capital adequacy ratio (%)

Commaon stock equity holders' ratio (%)

Prmary capital ratio

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
JO JD

100,000,000 100,000,000
12,976,822 16,209,648
12,477,651 5,491,519
25,004,513 23,570,771
150,458,986 145,271,938
(2,633,887) (3,003,463)
{7,578,553) {6,883,615)

140,248,546 135,384,860
6,365,000 5,311,284
6,365,000 5,311,284
6,365,000 5,311,284

146,613,546

140,696,144

959,877,544 810,256,182
15.27% 17.36%
14.61% 16.71%
14.61% M
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{43} ANALYSIS OF THE MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

The following table illustrates the analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected
period of their recoverability or settlement:

Moare than one

i B @RS EEREEZEEEESERESEESDERREGEESESSNEESEEEBRE

Up fo one year year Total

31 December 2017 JD JD JD
Assets:
Cash and balances at the Central Bank 108,370,113 - 108,370,113
Balances at banks and financial institutions 71,613,034 - 71,613,034
Deposits at banks and financial institutions 2,680,300 8,333,157 11,013,457
Financlal assets at fair value through stalement 1,853,987 - 1,853,987

of income
Direct credit facilities - net 293,180,913 352,858,981 646,039,894
Financial assels al fair value through other - 37,638,042 37,638,042

comprehensive income
Financial asseis at amortized cost 20,433,341 85,114,742 105,548,083
Property and plant -net 1,794,989 27,868,976 29,663,965
Intangible assels 772,522 1,861,365 2,633,887
Deferred tax assels 392,099 7,184,454 7,576,553
Other assels 8,903,572 42,391,546 51,295,118
Total assets 509,994,870 563,251,263  1,073,246,133
Liabilities:
Deposits al banks and financial institutions 10,232,834 - 10,232,834
Customers’ deposits 632,954 417 43,145,865 676,100,082
Cash margins 19,165,177 22,292,981 41,458,158
Borrowed funds 61,552,260 78,430,161 139,982,421
Bonds - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sundry provisions - 703,454 703,454
Income tax provision 3,984,780 - 3,984,780
Deferred tax liabilities - 6,103,221 6,103,221
Other liabilities 12,884,199 - 12,884,199
Total Liabilities 740,773,667 153,675,482 894,449,149
Net (230,778,797) 409,575,781 178,766,584
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More than one

Up to one vear year Total

31 December 2016 JD JD JD
Assets:

Cash and balances at the Central Bank 91,250,017 - 91,250,017
Balances at banks and financial institutions 73,902,498 - 73,902,498
Deposits at banks and financfal institutions 5,500,000 - 5,500,000
Financial assets al fair value through

statement of income 2,128,116 - 2,128,116
Direct credit facilities - net 243,907,884 294,722,401 538,630,285
Financial assets at fair value through

olher comprehensive income - 24,437,914 24,437,914

Financial assets at amortized cost 56,303,684 63,840,186 120,143,870
Property and plant -nat 2,045,123 26,528,486 28,573,609
Intangible assets 530,127 2,473,336 3,003,463
Deferred tax assets 378,258 6,505,357 6,883,615
Other assels 8,859,586 46,263,689 55,123,285
Tota! agsets 484,805,293 464,771,379 849,576,672
Liabllities:

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 2,432,998 - 2,432,998
Customers’ deposits 583,968,845 38,847,898 622,816,743
Cash margins 22,469,071 15,625,756 38,094,827
Borrowed funds 36,995,909 62,793,715 99,789,624
Sundry provisions - 710,086 710,086
Income tax provision 6,501,454 - 6,501,454
Deferred tax fiabilities - 2,812,850 2,812,850
Other liabllities 12,074,876 - 12,074,876
Total Liabllities 664,443,153 120,780,305 785,233,458
Net (179,637,860) 343,881,074 164,343,214
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{44) CusTOMERS’ MANAGED ACCOUNT

There Is no guaranteed paid in capital investment portfolioc managed by the Bank or lis subsidlaries
for the benefit of the customers.

(45) FaR VALUE HIERARCHY

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair valus by the valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical financial assels or
liabllities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value
measurement Is directly or indirectly observable market data.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. The Bank has applied book value method which considered the best
available method to measure fair value of these investments due to difficulty of fair value
measurement.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
JD JO JD JD
2017
Financial assets through
statement of income 1,523,770 - 330,217 1,853,987
Financial assels through other
comprehensive income 34,755,373 - 2,882,669 37.638,042
36,279,143 & 3,212,886 39,492,029
2016
Financial assets thraugh
statement of income 1,944,323 - 183,793 2,128,116
Financial assels through other
comprehensive income 21,851,633 g 2,586,281 24,437,914
23,795,856 - 2,770,074 26,566,030
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46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of the unquoted financial instruments presented in the consolidated financial position
are not materially different from their carrying value in the consoclidated financial statements. In
addition, the fair value of direct credit facilities, deposits in banks and financial instiution, customer
deposits, cash margin and borrowed money which presenled at amortized cost are note materially
different from their camying value presented in the consolidated financial statemenls because the
interest rale in the financial assets market are not materially different from their contractual prices,
futhermore, due to the short term periods when it comes to deposits at banks and financial
institution. The fair value presented at amortized cost is measured either through prices announced
in the market when it is available or through valuation methods such as used in some bonds with
fixed interest rate cases.

(47)__ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {OFF-FINANCIAL POSITION)

(a)  Credit commitments and contingencies:
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
JD JD

Letters of credit 14,113,336 7.613,523
Acceplances and periadic withdrawals 5,847 1862 8,438,672
Letters of guarantees:

Fayments 35,510,416 26,075,744
Perormance 43,313,447 39,777,088
Other 14,785,788 12,370,394
Unutilised credit facilities limits 43,106,027 28,634,407

156,688,176 122,909,828

(b) Contractual obligations:

Contracts to purchase property and equipment - 804
Construction coniracts 556,287 11,000
556,287 11,804

Operating leases amounted to JD 946,682 as of 31 December 2017 (2016: JD 842,728).
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{48) __LAWSUITS AGAINST THE BANK

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

(9)

(49)

The Bank is a defendani In lawsulls amounting to JD 4,462,850 as 31 December 2017
against JD 5,652,963 as of 31 December 2016. The total provision booked against these
lawsuits amounted to JD 570,312 as of 31 December 2017 against JD 640,620 as of 31
December 2016. As per the estimate of the management and the bank's lawyar, no addition
Kabiiities would arise against these lawsuits.

There were no lawsuits against the subsidiary companies: Al Mawared for financial
brokerage, Tamkeen for Finance leasing and Jordan Company for factoring.

The lawsuits against Al Istethmari Latamweel Selselat Al Imdad Company amounted to JD
3,000 as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, based on the sstimations of the
management and the company's lawyer no provision is needed at this level.

The lawsuits against Jordan Trade Facilities amounted to JD 39,200 as of 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016, as the lawsult provisions amounted to JD 29,500 in 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: Ni). Based on the eslimations of the management
and the company’s lawyer no additional liabilities would rise from these lawsuits.

Lawsuils raised against Trade Facilities for Financial Leasing (Subsidiary of Jordan Trade
Facility) amounted to JD 300 as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil), based on
the management’s assessment and the Company's legal consultant, no additional liabilities
would rise from these lawsults,

Lawsuits raised against Bindar Trading and Investment Company amounted to JD 115,625
as of 31 December 2017 and based on management estimates and the company’s legal
consultant, no additional liabilities would rise from these lawsuits,

No lawsuits were ralsed against Bindar for Financial Leasing, Aayan Trading, Agencies and
Investments and Rakeen Investment Company (Subsidiaries of Bindar for Trading and
Investmentis) as of 31 December 2017.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparalive figures were reclassified for the year ended 31 December 2016 to malch the
financial statement classifications for the year ended 31 December 2017.



